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As one of the most salient one-stop agencies that 
provides information, advisory services, as well 
as start-up or expansion assistance to potential 
and existing investors in Selangor, Invest Selangor 
Berhad has been a centrifugal force in driving 
economic enhancement and bringing development, 
employment as well as wealth to the state.

After operating for more than 18 years, we have 
established networking and links with more than 
60 investor countries and procured over 7,600 
manufacturing projects, creating more than 
380,000 job opportunities in the state and country. 
The projects have accumulated RM191.67 billion 
worth of investments and had allowed Selangor to 
be the main economic catalyst of Malaysia, living 
up to its nickname that we have envisioned: The 
Golden State of Malaysia. In 2017 alone, Selangor 
had contributed RM270 billion worth of Gross 
Domestic Product, which accounted for 23% of the 
entire nation’s GDP.

We would like to view ourselves as a beacon 
of investment that becomes a mediation point 
between potential and current investors and 
the revenue, as well as the state with the goal of 
establishing investments that would benefit all 
parties involved. In such sense, we are servicing both 
the state and the investors as we help the investors 
secure government approvals while helping the 
government promote potential investment avenues 

and sites. The key to our operation is for us to 
become an economic solution and catalyst. 

To create a conducive environment for economy, 
we assist our investors and partners through the 
following designated services:

• Making information on the investment process 
easily accessible;

• Being the one-stop-assistance-centre that 
mediate communication between investors and 
the state with regards to challenges during the 
investment process and/or expansion project;

• Being the conduit and communication platform 
for the management and government agencies;

• Facilitating the application and approval of 
investment projects with the state government 
agencies;

• Providing business matching services;
• Identifying suitable industrial lands and 

properties for investment projects;
• Introducing properties and land owners; and
• Establishing platforms and implementing 

new initiatives to improve the investment and 
business environment.

In whole, we would like to achieve the vision, in 
which the investors, the state, its people and the 
country would reap the benefits of a dynamic 
economic climate, as we pave the way for Selangor 
to truly become, the Golden State of Malaysia.

INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
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Y.A.B. Dato’ Seri Mohamed Azmin Bin Ali
Dato’ Menteri Besar Selangor

(Chief Minister of Selangor) and
Chairman, Invest Selangor Berhad



INVEST SELANGOR  I  ANNUAL REPORT 2017 11

It is a great honor and pleasure to present the 
2017 Invest Selangor Berhad Annual Report. 

It has been 18 years since we began our 
journey in becoming the catalyst to Selangor’s 
economic development and the path has 
shown many achievements and milestones. A 
GDP of RM270 billion with over 7,000 projects 
involving 65 investor countries shows that 
Selangor has indeed lived up to its title as the 
Golden State of Malaysia.

2017 has shown an increased strategic 
awareness in which events like the Selangor 
Industrial Master Plan Study Dialogue and 

Convergence 005: Business Intelligence; 
Emerging Technology Innovation Conference 
& Expo were involved. The year has shown a 
diligent continuation of international missions 
to bring foreign investments into Selangor 
thanks to aggressive and proactive trade 
missions, investment programs and business 
networking initiatives.

A series of the Selangor International 
Business Summit ASEAN roadshows that 
took place throughout Vietnam, Cambodia, 
Laos, Indonesia and Myanmar has further 
strengthened Selangor’s place as a regional 
investment hotspot in ASEAN. The MoUs with 

 Selangor in 2017 has once again proven itself to be a major 
economic driving force in Malaysia. We have contributed 23% of the 
nation’s GDP with a total of RM9.59 billion worth of direct investments 
secured. RM5.59 billion of the aforementioned investments originated 
from the manufacturing sector while an impressive RM4.0 billion was 
acquired from the service sector.

“ “

MESSAGE BY
CHAIRMAN
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the Victorian State Government, Australia; 
and the State of Bavaria, Germany established 
connections and foundation in the fields of 
automation and robotics; Industry 4.0; IoT 
and Big Data; Aerospace; and Biotechnology. 
These fields are the future and we are 
positioning ourselves at the very centre of it.

These strategic initiatives have played a key 
role in ensuring Selangor to be the highest 
contributor to the national GDP at 23% as 
compared to 22.7% in 2016, significantly 
ahead of other states. Selangor also surpassed 
the national GDP growth as it grew 7.1% as 
compared to the national growth of 5.9%. 
In total, 2017 had seen RM9.59 billion worth 
of direct investments with RM5.59 billion 
coming from the manufacturing sector and 
an impressive RM4.00 billion coming from the 
service sector. 

Foreign investments continue to drive 
economic growth with Japan providing 13 
projects worth RM533 million and Singapore 
providing 18 projects worth RM439 million. 
Consequently, our most notable foreign 
investment endeavour culminated in the 
Selangor International Business Summit 2017, 
that expanded from the Selangor International 
Expo, with an estimated of RM204 million 
worth of transaction value achieved in the 
summit alone. 

These figures are a clear indication of the 
degree of success that we have had in 
our efforts to establish foreign investment 
projects. In essence, this is a reaffirmation 
of the policies and strategic planning that 
Selangor has initiated. These achievements 
are the catalyst to realise the vision of making 
Selangor an affluent state that would greatly 
benefit its people.
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As Selangor enters a new chapter of becoming 
the main investment and business gateway to 
ASEAN, our competitive structural advantage 
and dynamic business ecosystem that are 
geared for smart manufacturing and smart city 
solutions prove to be main pulling factors for 
investors to expand their business in Selangor. 
The promotion of e-commerce education, 
networking possibilities and the continuation 
of the Invest Selangor Talent Initiative have 
provided ample talent pool and human capital 
that the investors would find highly accessible. 

The focus on Higher Value Industries that 
includes biotechnology, aerospace and Halal 
industries remains our priorities as well. 
The Selangor Bio Bay that spans over 1,000 
acres in Pulau Indah is set to be a centre for 
biotechnology in which laboratories, research 
institutes and biotech manufacturing facilities 
will be placed. 

In the aerospace industry, missions and technical 
visits  to Germany, Belgium, France and the 
United Kingdom had been taken into account 
in structuring the Selangor Aerospace Council 
blueprint. The signing of MoUs with MARA 

Aerospace and Malaysia Airport Holdings 
Berhad is further evidence that Selangor is 
fast becoming a major business hub for the 
aerospace industry.

The Halal economy that is expected to grow to 
USD6.4 trillion by 2018 has also been Selangor’s 
main focus. We have launched the Halal 
International Selangor (HIS) Initiative that aims 
to be the centre of the global Halal trade and 
industry by servicing the needs of consumers, 
retailers, traders, distributors and manufacturers 
through 10 key programmes.

Ultimately, these achievements ensure healthy 
economic growth and enhancement of the life 
of the people in Selangor. I am confident that 
Invest Selangor Berhad, their management and 
their team would continue to be the driving 
force behind Selangor’s success and maintain it 
as the Golden State of Malaysia. 

My sincere and heartfelt thanks to Invest 
Selangor Berhad and the people behind it 
for their unwavering effort and dedication 
to accomplish Selangor’s vision, mission and 
objectives.
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The Year 2017 had witnessed the combative growth 
of Selangor’s economy despite numerous economic 
challenges faced locally and internationally. The 
interest rates remained unchanged and economic 
expansions were strong, with both steady 
improvements in foreign sectors as well as high 
domestic demands. 

By the end of December 2017, the overall global 
foreign direct investment (FDI) fell  by 24% to 
RM5.8 trillion from RM7.6 trillion in 2016. The net FDI 
inflows in the country had maintained its stability 
with only a marginal drop from RM46 billion in 2016 
to RM38.7.billion in 2017.

In a summative outlook, 62% of total approved 
investments in Malaysia were in the services sector, 
equivalent to RM124.5 billion while 32% or RM63.7 
billion were invested in the manufacturing sector, an 
8.9% increase from RM58.5 billion in 2016. 

Like in the previous year, Selangor had retained 
its place as the state with the greatest number of 
projects approved for investments as shown by 
MIDA’s statistics in which Selangor had secured 202 
approved investments as compared to Johor with 
146 projects. While Sarawak, Pulau Pinang and Johor 
showed a higher total Proposed Capital Investment, 
Selangor remains as the highest contributor to the 
country’s GDP growth at 23%. A huge factor in this 
success comes from the strategic planning and 
initiatives done by Invest Selangor Berhad. 

Selangor’s role in bolstering Malaysia’s service 
sector is imminently seen in its procurement of 
nearly RM4.0 billion worth of projects in the sector. 
Meanwhile, two major MoUs were signed with foreign 
investment parties and Selangor had increasingly 
become a regional investment hotspot in Asia. 

The corporate rebranding in 2015 together 
with targeted investor engagement activities 
domestically and abroad had created greater 
awareness among key global business leaders 
and decision makers on Selangor’s potential as a 
regional centre for innovation and a trailblazer for 
digital economic transformation.

The promotional activities have been boosted by 
sound administrative policies, strong governance, 
ease of doing business, corporate friendly initiatives 

and the availability of skilled human capital - all 
the key components required by global investors. 
Without doubt, Selangor is highly regarded in all 
these areas.

Selangor’s foreign direct investments have 
shown much growth over the years as well. Its 
strong roots lie in its relation to ASEAN countries 
that contributed 28.1% of Selangor approved 
manufactured investments in 2017. As the ASEAN 
region continues to grow to become one of the most 
promising economic goldmines after the EU, US and 
China, Selangor had slowly grown into one of the 
main investment hubs in the ASEAN region. In its 30 
years of service from 1987 to 2017, Invest Selangor 
Berhad had garnered RM191.67 billion worth of 
investment value involving 7,694 projects with over 
60 countries. With aerospace, biotechnology, ICT 
and Halal sectors spearheading its economic growth, 
Selangor has established itself as the Golden State 
of Malaysia.

Invest Selangor Berhad’s main mission is to facilitate 
and catalyse these investments sectors by providing 
advisory and facilitation services to investors, making 
the business opportunities more visible, accessible 
and feasible. Characteristically Invest Selangor 
is known for its relentless but intelligent effort in 
promoting the state to local and abroad investors 
with 21 investment missions and visits. The highlight 
of it is the Selangor International Business Summit 
2017 ASEAN Roadshow that had visited Thailand, 
Myanmar, Indonesia, Laos and Cambodia among 
other countries. 19 Investor Engagement Programs 
had also been conducted culminating to the signing 
of the two MoUs with Victoria State and Germany’s 
Bavarian State. There were also 56 Foreign Embassy 
and Business Chamber Engagement Programs that 
had seen countries like Korea and Belgium being 
welcomed to Selangor and its business possibilities. 

All the missions and engagement programs 
culminated in the monumental Selangor International 
Business Summit 2017 that was held from 7 – 17 
September 2017 in Setia City Convention Centre. 
The summit was a raving success as it garnered a 
total of 22,071 visitors with 14,002 of the visitors 
were the general public and an impressive 8,069 
trade visitors that came from all over the world. A 
total of 590 booths were opened with participation 
from local and international exhibitors.

BUSINESS REVIEW

CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S
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Y.BHG. DATO’ HASAN AZHARI BIN HJ. IDRIS
Chief Executive Officer
Invest Selangor Berhad
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To further ensure a structured and strategic development of the state’s economy, Invest Selangor Berhad had 
taken its initiative to refine the industrial and service sectors into five specific and goal driven sectors. Under 
the industrial sectors five core industrial clusters were established:

• Electrical and electronics including consumer and industrial electronics, electronic components and 
electrical products.

• Life sciences including biotechnology, pharmaceuticals, chemicals and medical devices and services.
• Food and beverages including dairy and confectionary products, soft drinks, frozen food processing, raw 

materials and Halal compliance.
• Transport and equipment including automotive, aerospace and maritime sectors.
• Machinery and equipment for industrial use.

Likewise, the service sector had been properly managed into five different clusters:

• Global business services as a network and relation to foreign investments.
• Information and Communication Technology (ICT).
• Education that includes the blossoming private education sector.
• Logistics with Selangor being the main logistics hub for the ASEAN region.
• Halal-based industries services.

One of the main ingredients in Invest Selangor largely successful modus operandi is the inclusion of thoughtful 
and strategic thinking to the economic and business endeavours that are overtaken. As a call to the state’s 
initiative to promote the five industrial clusters, the Selangor Industrial Master Plan Study had been initiated 
with Monash University Malaysia to analyse the state’s initiatives’ success rates in the respective clusters. In 
Mac 2017, the dialogue on the Selangor Industrial Master Plan Study had been held in which numerous experts 
and business stakeholders discussed on the effectiveness of the initiatives and how they can be significantly 
improved. 

While Malaysia is heading towards a new direction and future, uncertainties in the economy both locally and 
globally remain unchanged. Nevertheless, with the history and support system given by the state, Invest 
Selangor looks forward to a huge leap to our projected RM12 billions of investments secured this year. 

I have full confidence and faith that with the help of all stakeholders, and with the initiatives and strategies 
coupled with hard work, Invest Selangor Berhad will meet its duty to carry Selangor’s economic mission and 
vision in aspiring to become the number one destination in Malaysia, ASEAN and to the world.
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

1. Y.A.B. DATO’ SERI MOHAMED AZMIN BIN ALI
CHAIRMAN

2. Y.B. DATO’ MOHD AMIN BIN AHMAD AHYA
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

3. Y.B. DATO’ NOORDIN BIN SULAIMAN

4. Y.B. DATO’ TENG CHANG KHIM

5. Y.BHG. DATO’ NOR AZMIE BIN DIRON

6. Y.BHG. DATO’ HASAN AZHARI BIN HJ. IDRIS

7. MR. MOHD AZUAN BIN HJ. KHAIROJI
COMPANY SECRETARY

1

4

2

5

3

6 7
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1. Y.BHG. DATO’ HASAN AZHARI BIN HJ. IDRIS
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

2. MR. MOHD AZUAN BIN HJ. KHAIROJI
DIRECTOR, CORPORATE SERVICES DIVISION

3. MR. SHAHRUL AZAMIN BIN ABDULLAH
DIRECTOR, INDUSTRY SUPPORT DIVISION

4. MR. SVEN SCHNEIDER
DIRECTOR, CORPORATE COMMUNICATION & 
STRATEGIC PLANNING DIVISION

5. MRS. NOOR AZFINAH BT ISHAK
DIRECTOR, TRADE & INVESTMENT DIVISION

6. MR. JAMIE HANIFF RAMLEE
DIRECTOR, CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

7. MR. FARID BIN MOHAMAD BA’AI
SENIOR MANAGER, INDUSTRY SUPPORT

8. MR. MOHD SYAHID BIN OTHMAN
MANAGER, CLUSTER DEVELOPMENT

9. MR. AZRUL SHAH BIN MOHAMAD
MANAGER, CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

TEAM
MANAGEMENT

1

4

7

2

5

8

3

6

9
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ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE

Y.BHG. DATO’ HASAN AZHARI BIN HJ. IDRIS
Chief Executive Officer
ceo@investselangor.my

MR. MOHD. AZUAN BIN 
HAJI KHAIROJI

Director, 
Corporate Services 

Division
azuan@investselangor.my

MR. SHAHRUL AZAMIN
BIN ABDULLAH

Director, 
Industry Support

Division
shahrul@investselangor.my

MRS. NOOR AZFINAH 
BINTI ISHAK

Director, 
Trade & Investment 

Division
azfinah@investselangor.my

MR. SVEN SCHNEIDER
Director, 

Corporate
Communication & 
Strategic Planning

Division
sven@investselangor.my

MR. JAMIE HANIFF 
RAMLEE
Director, 

Cluster Development
Division

jamie@investselangor.my

Finance Life Sciences Halal

ICT & 
E-Commerce

Corporate
Communication

Corporate
Strategic 
Planning

Administration Food & 
Beverages

Aerospace

Biotech

Events

Research &
Analysis

Industrial 
Development
& NOL

Information
Management
System

Human Capital
Electrical & 
Electronics

Publications

Transport
Equipment

Machinery &
Equipment

Company 
Secretary

Foreign
Investors

Domestic
Investors
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REVIEW
STRATEGIC
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INTERNATIONAL
DIRECT INVESTMENT
PERFORMANCE

The Global Foreign Direct Investment Flows suffer 
further slumps after 2016’s poor performance, 
according to UNCTAD’s World Investment Report 
2018. The meagre global performance however, has 
a two-sided story to it. While the FDI fell sharply 
in developed countries’ economies, developing 
country’s economies contributed 47% worth of FDI 
flows at USD671 billion. Microeconomics variables 
such as GDP and trade had also improved showing 
a more inward development of the economy.

FDI inflows to developed economies suffered a 
considerable fall at USD712 billion as compared to 
the preceding year that reached USD1 trillion in value. 
UNCTAD perceived that such sharp decrement 
occurs due to the stabilisation of cross-border M&A 
market as well as the lack of megadeals that had 
been agreed in between countries. United States 
suffered a devastating 40% decline of transaction 
flows from USD466 billion in 2015 and USD457 
billion in 2016 to USD275 billion in 2017, while United 
Kingdom fell to as low as USD15 billion. 

In a stark contrast, the FDI inflows to developing 
countries did not suffer significant fall as it is recorded 
at USD671 billion, similar to 2016’s performance. 

Particularly, developing Asia was doing well, as it 
regained its position as the region with the largest 
FDI reception. Quite impressively, developing Asia’s 
share in global inflows jumped to 33% from 2016’s 
25%. Hong Kong, China and Singapore were the 
largest recipients of inflows with China recording 
a massive USD136 billion worth of inflows, a figure 
that is only second to United States in the whole 
world. 

FDI flows to Latin America and the Caribbean rose 
for the first time in six years from 5.3% in the year 
2016 to 5.6% last year. The figure is still dwarfed by 
the 2011 peak due to the commodity boom but the 
figure also hints to a significant change in the region. 
A shift of investment focus from commodities 
towards infrastructure, particularly in energy and 
utilities; finance; business services; ICT and a portion 
of manufacturing showed an effort in the region to 
move forward from the over-exhausted investment 
in commodities.

The Commonwealth of Independent States (CIS) 
and South-East Europe followed the global trend 
and suffered a drop by 27% in 2017, with the FDI 
inflows recorded at a low USD47 billion. This is the 
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lowest value the region had obtained since 2005. 
Experts speculated that the major decline the four 
major players of CIS economies: Ukraine, Azerbaijan, 
Kazakhstan and the Russian Federation is the main 
reason for the region’s poor FDI flows.

Reflecting the global economic trend, transition 
economies in the Commonwealth of Independent 
States (CIS) and in South-East Europe also suffered 
a decline and suffered a drop of 27% to USD47 billion 
in 2017 the second lowest level since 2005. The poor 
FDI flows to Ukraine, Azerbaijan, Kazakhstan and the 
Russian Federation – the four major CIS economies, 
was the main reason for the decline.

There is a paradoxical trend in the values of the FDI 
flows as indicated by regional variations. Developed 
economies’ share of the world FDI flows collectively 
had decreased to 50% while the developing 
economies make up half of the top 10 economies in 
the world. Despite a slowdown in the first quarter of 
2017, China was the second largest recipient of FDI 
with a record of USD136 billion worh of inflows, while 
the United States remained the largest FDI recipient, 
cumulating USD275 billion worth of inflows. 

FDI outflows however showed a slightly different 
trend. Investment activities by MNEs in developed 
economies were stabilized with their share if global 
FDI outflows to remain at 71% or USD1 trillion. In 
contrast to their strong FDI inflows, developing 
countries quieted down their FDI outflows as it fell 
6% to USD381 billion. The region in the transition 
economies category on the other hand had a very 
healthy grow of FDI outflows as their outward 
investments increased 59% to USD40 billion.

Netherlands and Switzerland massively dropped 
their FDI outflows in the Europe causing the overall 
outward investment by European MNES to drop 
21% to USD418 billion in 2017. Netherlands that 
had USD172 billion FDI outflows suffered 87% drop 
to just USD23 billion with the lucrative megadeals 
that characterized the Dutch’s aggressive outward 
economy missing. Switzerland is another European 
country that had a massive 83% drop of FDI outflows 
to a net divestment of USD15 billion. The equity 
flows of both Netherlands and Switzerland fell by 
USD126.8 billion and USD47 billion respectively.

Outflows from the United Kingdom however 
showed a drastic rise to USD100 billion in 2017 as 
compared to the low -USD23 billion in 2016. Large 
purchases by UK-based MNEs on American shares 
like the purchase of Reynolds American and Mead 
Johnson Nutrition by British American tobacco 
and Reckitt Benckiser respectively garnered a 
total of USD66 billion worth of FDI outflows. UK’s 
reinvested earning rose for the first time since 2014 
as it collected USD29 billion worth of FDI outflows. 

Despite having a large increment in FDI inflows, 
developing economies FDI outflows fell by 6% at 
USD381 billion. Outflows from developing Asia 
suffered the most with China’s outflows reversed for 

the first time since 2003, suffering a loss of USD125 
billion worth of outflows. Chinese MNEs were very 
economic in investing outside of China as the result 
of restrictive FDI outflow policies that had affected 
industries like entertainment, sports, cinemas, real 
estates and hotels. The total drop of developing 
economies’ FDI outflows however were offset by the 
increment by India and Hong Kong, China that went 
up 123% to USD11 billion and 39% to USD83 billion 
respectively. 

On the prospects of 2018 FDI flows, UNCTAD 
predicted that there will be a fragile growth in the 
global foreign direct investment flows. A marginal 
increase to USD1.5 trillion worth of FDI flows at 
roughly about 5% is expected to occur. The current 
trend reflects a plausible upswing in the global 
economy, strong aggregate demand, acceleration 
in world trade and strong MNE profits (total profits, 
which may not reflect the profitability of overseas 
operations). These improving macroeconomic 
factors in return will have a direct positive effect on 
MNEs capacity and interest to invest, catalysing a 
slight growth of FDI flows. In sum, 2018 prospectively 
shows a potential to be a good economic year for 
MNEs globally. 

[Source: Adopted from UNCTAD’s World Investment Report 

2018, Rosnefthttps://unctad.org/en/PublicationsLibrary/wir2018_

en.pdf}
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MALAYSIA
DIRECT INVESTMENT
PERFORMANCE
In the challenging landscape of unstable and 
unpredictable economy, Malaysia continued to 
sustain its economic growth according to Malaysian 
Investment Development Authority’s (MIDA) Annual 
Media Conference 2018. Total trade increased 19.4% 
from RM1.49 trillion in the previous year to RM1.8 
trillion in 2017, the highest growth recorded in the 
last 13 years. The GDP annual growth was recorded 
at an impressive 5.9%, one of the highest in growth 
in the ASEAN region. 

Investments remained strong both in foreign 
and domestic direct investments with a marginal 
decrease of 7.4% at RM197.1 billion as compared 
to 2016 at RM212.9 billion. Domestic investments 
contributed 72.2% of the national investment value 
at RM142.4 billion while the foreign investments 
contributed 27.8% of the national investment value 
at RM54.7 billion. Despite the decrease in the Direct 
Investment total, the number of projects increased 
by 5.8%. A total of 5,466 projects were approved 
in total, creating 139,523 job opportunities in the 
country.

MIDA also posited that 2017 shows a year of 
transformation in direct investment as a total of 
RM39.5 billion worth of approved projects come 

from new projects, representing 62% of the total 
projects approved in the manufacturing sector. 
This is a true indication that Malaysia is indeed a 
favourable destination for investments and there 
are plenty of platforms and avenues that can still be 
explored to further accelerate the economy. 

MIDA’s report also raised two very interesting 
discussions on the Malaysian economic climate. First 
is the transformation and the evolution of the pre-
existing Electrical and Electronics (E&E) Industry 
that evolved divergently into several new industries. 
From manufacturing level of production, companies 
in the E&E industries are venturing into R&D 
Operations; Integrated Operations; and Fulfilment 
and Distribution Centres. 

An example is Motorola Solutions Malaysia that 
employs over 1000 E&D Engineers (100% locals) 
with qualification ranging from degree to PhD – the 
largest number in all Motorola Solutions plants in 
the world. With companies like Intel, Infineon, and 
Freescale being the forerunners to the new horizons 
of the E&E industry, MIDA perceives that Malaysia is 
gearing towards higher-value industries in the near 
future. 



INVEST SELANGOR  I  ANNUAL REPORT 2017 25

2017 also saw Malaysia becoming a bigger global and 
regional hub for multi-national companies such as 
Nestle, Peugeot and Osram Opto Semiconductors. 
As many as 28 companies had established their 
Principal Hub in Malaysia as their regional or global 
base under the Malaysian Principal Hub Scheme. 
These PHs have managed to secure RM28.57 billion 
worth of business commitments that utilized RM2.35 
billion worth of local Ancillary services. This ensures 
2,020 high value jobs that would be available for 
Malaysian professionals in the next 10 years. 

The 2018 prospects for Malaysia will bounce back, 
which echoes the global prospect that will have an 
upturn up to USD1.8 trillion. Malaysia’s economic 
strengths, which include stable and supportive 
business environment; strong fundamentals; 
talented workforce; strategic locations; and an 
effective government that has embraced creativity 
and innovation, will oversee a recovery of the 
economy. With RM69.6 billion worth of investment is 
already in the pipeline for manufacturing and service 
industries, MIDA aims that Malaysia will secure 
a minimum of RM80 billion worth of investment 
approvals with over 12 companies setting up their 
Principal Hub in the country.

[Source: Adopted from MIDA’s Annual Media Conference 2018, 

http://www.mida.gov.my/home/administrator/system_files/

modules/photo/uploads/20180306165441_Presentation%20

Slides%20-%20Malaysia%20Investment%20Performance%20

Report%202017.pdf}
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TRADE AND INVESTMENT
MISSIONS

Objectives:

• Establishing and strengthening two-way relationships 
with the Indian government, NGO’s and local business 
organization.

• Meeting with potential inventors from India.
• Participated in the BioAsia 2017 in Hyderabad, India in 

one of panel discussion in manufacturing conference.

Objectives:

• Sharing and acquiring knowledge on the Aerospace field 
and technology.

• Discussing issues in regard to MRO-Aviation Week 
Singapore 2017

Objectives:

• Establishing and strengthening two-way relationships 
between Selangor and Taiwan.

• Hosting the Southeast Asia Halal & Cross-Border 
E-Commerce Selangor-Taiwan Southbound Policy 
Forum in Taiwan. The forum was officiated by the Y.A.B. 
Dato’ Seri Mohamed Azmin Bin Ali, Dato’ Menteri Besar 
Selangor (Chief Minister of Selangor).

SELANGOR INVESTMENT MISSION TO INDIA 
6 – 14 FEBRUARY 2017
NEW DELHI & HYDERABAD

WORKING VISIT TO SINGAPORE 
19 – 20 APRIL 2017
SINGAPORE

SELANGOR INVESTMENT MISSION TO TAIWAN
23 – 29 APRIL 2017
KAOHSIUNG, TAINAN & TAIPEI
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Objectives:

• As a learning curve and to benchmark the ecosystems in 
the Aerospace and Halal industries.

• Research and archiving of facts and data to complete 
the Action Plan for Selangor Aerospace Council and 
Selangor Halal Council. 

• Initial visits and surveys on several companies that 
are identified as potential investors while exploring 
the possibilities of joint-effort or collaborations in the 
Aerospace and Halal industries.

Objectives:

• The Honourable Dato’ Teng Chang Khim was invited as a 
guest of speaker during ‘The 4th Silk Road International 
Chamber of Commerce Investment and Trade Conference’ 
to promote Selangor as an investment location along the 
‘Belt and Road Initiative’.

• Visit to Xi’an Hi-tech Industries Developement Zone 
(XHTZ) and discussed about the planning, management 
and development of Hi-tech Zone.

Objectives:

• To seek for new investment to Selangor as well as 
collaboration with potential partners from the Halal and 
Aerospace Sectors.

• The highlight of the mission was an Mou Signing with 
Bayern International and ISB.

TECHNICAL VISIT TO GERMANY, BELGIUM & SPAIN
24 APRIL – 3 MAY 2017
GERMANY, BELGIUM & SPAIN
(MUNICH, BRUSSELS & SEVILLE)

INVESTMENT PROMOTION MISSION TO CHINA
3 – 6 JUNE 2017
XI’AN, CHINA

SELANGOR INVESTMENT MISSION TO CHINA
1 – 4 MAY 2017
GUANGZHOU, SHENZHEN AND SUZHOU

SELANGOR INVESTMENT MISSION TO BELGIUM & 
GERMANY
13 – 19 MAY 2017
BRUSSELS, HAMBURG & MUNICH

Objectives:

• Promoting and strengthening bilateral economic and 
technical coorperation in e-Commerce and Life Sciences.

• Visited the China Import and Export Fair (Canton Fair).
• Mission was led by The Honourable Dato’ Teng Chang 

Khim.
• MoU signing between Selangor Bio Bay, Souzhou 

Industrial Park International Innovation Centrevand SA 
withnessed by The Honourable Dato’ Teng Chang Khim.
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Objectives:

• Promoting Selangor as the Trade and Investment hub 
among ASEAN countries.

• Promoting Selangor-ASEAN Business Conference 2017, 
which is one of the programs in the Selangor International 
Business Summit (SIBS) 2017.

Objectives:

• Promoting Selangor as the Trade and Investment hub 
among ASEAN countries.

• Promoting Selangor-ASEAN Business Conference 2017, 
which is one of the programs in the Selangor International 
Business Summit (SIBS) 2017.

Objectives:

• Promoting Selangor as the Trade and Investment hub 
among ASEAN countries.

• Promoting Selangor-ASEAN Business Conference 2017, 
which is one of the programs in the Selangor International 
Business Summit (SIBS) 2017.

SELANGOR INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS SUMMIT 2017 
ASEAN ROADSHOW – VIETNAM
3 – 5 JULY 2017
HANOI

SELANGOR INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS SUMMIT 2017 
ASEAN ROADSHOW – CAMBODIA
12 – 14 JULY 2017
PHNOM PENH

SELANGOR INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS SUMMIT 2017 
ASEAN ROADSHOW – LAOS
15 – 18 JULY 2017
VIENTIANE

Objectives:

• Participation of Invest Selangor under Malaysia Chalet 
/ Pavilion is an effort to explore collaborations with the 
major stakeholders and players in the Aerospace global 
market.

• Some of the fields involved include aero-manufacturing; 
maintenance, repair and operations (MRO); avionics and 
system integration; engineering services; human resource 
development; education; and others.

PARTICIPATION / PAVILION MALAYSIA, 
INTERNATIONAL PARIS AIRSHOW 2017
17 – 23 JUNE 2017
PARIS
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Objectives:

• Promoting Selangor as the Trade and Investment hub 
among ASEAN countries.

• Promoting Selangor-ASEAN Business Conference 2017, 
which is one of the programs in the Selangor International 
Business Summit (SIBS) 2017.

Objectives:

• Promoting Selangor as the Trade and Investment hub 
among ASEAN countries.

• Official Sale & Purchase Agreement (SPA) signing 
ceremony between IKEA Supply AG and Central 
Spectrum Sdn. Bhd.

• Meeting with companies and entities that are considered 
as potential investors in Selangor.

SELANGOR INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS SUMMIT 2017 
ASEAN ROADSHOW – INDONESIA
18 – 20 JULY 2017
JAKARTA

Objectives:

• Promoting Selangor as the Trade and Investment hub 
among ASEAN countries.

• Promoting Selangor-ASEAN Business Conference 2017, 
which is one of the programs in the Selangor International 
Business Summit (SIBS) 2017.

SELANGOR INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS SUMMIT 2017 
ASEAN ROADSHOW – MYANMAR
25 – 27 JULY 2017
YANGON

SELANGOR INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS SUMMIT 2017 
ASEAN ROADSHOW – THAILAND
8 – 11 AUGUST 2017
BANGKOK

Objectives:

• Promoting Selangor as the Trade and Investment hub 
among ASEAN countries.

• Promoting Selangor-ASEAN Business Conference 2017, 
which is one of the programs in the Selangor International 
Business Summit (SIBS) 2017.

SELANGOR INVESTMENT MISSION TO SWITZERLAND, 
SWEDEN & HOLLAND
21 AUGUST – 1 SEPTEMBER 2017
SWITZERLAND, SWEDEN & HOLLAND
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Objectives:

• This mission was led by the Y.A.B. Dato’ Seri Mohamed 
Azmin Bin Ali, Dato’ Menteri Besar Selangor (Chief 
Minister of Selangor).

• To highlight the economic development in Selangor and 
to create business relations between India and Selangor 
State Government.

• To create colaboration in the Biotechnology and Life 
Sciences sector and to attract investment into Selangor.

SELANGOR INVESTMENT MISSION TO CHINA
20– 23 SEPTEMBER 2017
GUANGZHOU & SHENZHEN

Objectives:

• Participating in Guangdong 21st Century Maritime Silk 
Road International Expo.

• Meeting with Deputy Governor of Guangdong to establish 
and strengthen two-way relationships between Selangor 
and Guangdong state governments.

• Discussion with ZTE Corporation for plausible joint 
venture in the Smart State Development of Selangor 
program.

TECHNICAL VISIT TO VIETNAM
1 – 4 OCTOBER 2017
HO CHI MINH CITY

Objectives:

• Technical visit to gain knowledge and experience on 
managed industrial parks models that are practiced in 
Vietnam, in order to assist Selangor to develop our new 
Managed Industrial Park Policy.

Objectives:

• Trade and Investment mission organized by MIDA and 
led by Y.B. Dato’ Seri Mustapa Mohamad, the Minister of 
International Trade and Industry (MITI).

• Focusing on the IoT and Innovation sectors.

SELANGOR INVESTMENT MISSION TO INDIA
25– 29 SEPTEMBER 2017
CHENNAI, HYDERABAD & NEW DELHI

TRADE AND INVESTMENT MISSION TO EUROPE BY 
MIDA
18 – 22 OCTOBER 2017
HAMBURG, AMSTERDAM & STOCKHOLM
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Objectives:

• Technical visits to innovation agencies in Britain that 
possess membership among companies with technologies 
relevant to Industry 4.0 and Smart Selangor.

• Inviting the involved companies to invest in Selangor.
• Smart Selangor Pavillion officiated by DYTM Tengku Amir 

Shah Ibni Sultan Sharafuddin Idris Shah Al-Haj, Crown 
Prince of Selangor.

TECHNICAL VISIT TO INNOVATION AGENCIES IN 
LONDON
20 – 21 NOVEMBER 2017
INNOVATION AGENCIES, LONDON

Objectives:

• A mission to promote the Aerospace industries in 
Selangor.

• Exploring possible collaborations and networking with 
other companies and agencies that participated at the 
air show.

PARTICIPATION AT MATRADE’S EXPORT 
ACCELERATION MISSION FOR AEROSPACE INDUSTRY 
IN CONJUNCTION WITH DUBAI AIR SHOW
12 – 16 NOVEMBER 2017
DUBAI

Objectives:

• Selangor State Government had set up the Smart 
Selangor Pavillion to promote Smart Selangor Initiatives 
in collaboration with Menteri Besar Incorporated (MBI).

• Smart Selangor Pavillion was joined by other Selangor 
State agencies such as Central Spectrum (M) Sdn Bhd, 
KDEB Waste & Management, and local councils such as 
the Petaling Jaya City Council, Sepang Municipal Council 
(in collaboration with Cyberview Sdn Bhd and Setia 
Haruman Sdn Bhd), SITEC, and TM Malaysia.

• Smart Selangor Pavillion officiated by DYTM Tengku Amir 
Shah Ibni Sultan Sharafuddin Idris Shah Al-Haj, Crown 
Prince of Selangor.

PARTICIPATION OF THE SELANGOR STATE 
GOVERNMENT IN THE SMART CITY EXPO WORLD 
CONGRESS (SCEWC) @ FIRA BARCELONA
14 – 17 NOVEMBER 2017
BARCELONA 
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ENGAGEMENT
PROGRAMS

Objectives:

• Acquiring feedback on the status of project 
implementation and to foster closer relationship with 
state goverment and companies.

Objectives:

• Establishing and strengthening networking among 
members of Invest Selangor Advisory Network. 

• Briefing on the upcoming Selangor International Business 
Summit 2017.

• Updating latest information and data on investors and 
investments in Selangor.

MEETING WITH NO OBJECTION LETTER (NOL)
COMPANIES APPROVED IN SELANGOR 
17 JANUARY 2017
INVEST SELANGOR

Objectives:

• Fostering understanding among the Malaysian society 
that consists of multiple racial and religious backgrounds.

• Fostering the spirit of unity and camaraderie among the 
society and strengthening the bonds between leaders 
and their people.

SELANGOR CHINESE NEW YEAR OPEN HOUSE 2017 
5 FEBRUARY 2017
PANDAMARAN SPORTS COMPLEX, KLANG

INVEST SELANGOR ADVISORY NETWORK LUNCHEON 
2017
23 FEBRUARY 2017
CONCORDE HOTEL, SHAH ALAM



INVEST SELANGOR  I  ANNUAL REPORT 2017 35

Objectives:

• Discussing the growth and development of the Halal 
industry particularly in Selangor. 

• The meeting functions as a research and data collection 
to prepare the Selangor Halal Industry Action Plan.

MEETING WITH TECHNICAL AGENCIES AND 
COMPANIES INVOLVED IN THE HALAL INDUSTRY IN 
SELANGOR
24 FEBRUARY 2017
INVEST SELANGOR

Objectives:

• Creating awareness among industries’ stakeholders on 
the findings of the Selangor Industrial Master Plan Study. 

• Making the ideas, views, suggestions and improvements 
on industrial clusters visible and accessible to all involved 
parties to catalyse betterment in each cluster.

DIALOGUE SESSION FOR SELANGOR INDUSTRIAL 
MASTER PLAN STUDY
14 MARCH 2017
MONASH UNIVERSITY MALAYSIA

Objectives:

• Establishing a collaboration in the development of 
Aerospace Industry, particularly in Selangor.

MOU SIGNING BETWEEN INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD 
& MARA AEROSPACE & TECHNOLOGY SDN. BHD
21 MARCH 2017
THE LANGKAWI INTERNATIONAL MARITIME & 
AEROSPACE EXHIBITION 2017 (LIMA17)

Objectives:

• The Objective of the MoU is to encourage aerospace 
companies to invest in Malaysia.

MOU SIGNING BETWEEN INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD 
& MALAYSIA AIRPORT HOLDINGS BERHAD IN JOINTLY 
PROMOTING FOR AEROSPACE COMPANIES TO INVEST 
IN THE STATE OF SELANGOR
23 MARCH 2017
THE LANGKAWI INTERNATIONAL MARITIME & 
AEROSPACE EXHIBITION 2017 (LIMA17)
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Objectives:

• Creating awareness about the cycling, which would be 
held on 30 July 2017.

• Promoting healthy lifestyle among industrial community 
and society in Selangor.

SELANGOR INDUSTRIAL RIDE 1.0 SOFT LAUNCH
23 MAY 2017
DATARAN BANGUNAN SUK, SHAH ALAM

Objectives:

• Signing of the MoU by Y.Bhg. Dato’ Hasan Azhari Hj Idris, 
CEO of Invest Selangor Berhad with Mr. Brett Stevens, 
Commissioner to South East Asia, State Government of 
Victoria.  

• The Objective of the MoU is to establish two-way 
collaborations in the investment sectors on both sides.

MOU SIGNING BETWEEN INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD 
& VICTORIAN STATE GOVERNMENT
22 MAY 2017
ISTANA SELANGOR, KUALA LUMPUR

Objectives:

• Creating awareness about the summit that would be held 
on 7 – 17 September 2017 at the Setia City Convention 
Centre (SCCC).

SELANGOR INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS SUMMIT 2017 
SOFT LAUNCH
11 MAY 2017
SETIA CITY CONVENTION CENTRE (SCCC)

Objectives:

• Discussing the issue and challenges of the Aerospace 
industries in Malaysia, specifically in Selangor. Attended 
by government departments and manufacturers in 
Selangor.

SELANGOR AEROSPACE INDUSTRY SHARING 
SESSION: ‘ISSUES AND CHALLENGES WITHIN THE 
MALAYSIAN AEROSPACE INDUSTRY 2017’
11 APRIL 2017
DORSETT GRAND SUBANG HOTEL
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Objectives:

• Promoting healthy lifestyle among industrial community 
and society in Selangor.

Objectives:

• The objective of this program is to foster closer 
relationship between the business association and 
state government, sharing experience and information, 
exchanging views and networking among investor.

SELANGOR INDUSTRIAL RIDE 1.0
30 JULY 2017
PANASONIC NATIONAL SPORTS COMPLEX,
SHAH ALAM

HI TEA WITH LOCAL & INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS 
ASSOCIATION
15 AUGUST 2017
HILTON HOTEL, PETALING JAYA

Objectives:

• A mission to promote the Aerospace industries from 
Selangor.

• Exploring possible collaborations and networking with 
other companies and agencies that participated in the 
air show.

PARTICIPATION IN MATRADE’S EXPORT 
ACCELERATION MISSION FOR AEROSPACE INDUSTRY 
IN CONJUNCTION WITH DUBAI AIR SHOW 2017
12 – 16 NOVEMBER 2017
DUBAI

Objectives:

• Celebrating Aidilfitri with state departments and investors 
in the Selangor.

INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD OPEN HOUSE 2017 SACC 
SHAH ALAM
19 JULY 2017
SACC SHAH ALAM
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Objectives:

• To exchange knowledge and experience between the 
state of Selangor and Singapore’s aerospace key players.

• To discuss the current economic situation, highlighted 
issues and challenges in the aerospace industry in general.

• To exchange ideas and thoughts on exploring collaboration 
and opportunities between the state of Selangor and 
Singapore aerospace company /key players.

Objectives:

• To exchange knowledge and experience between the 
state of Selangor and Singapore’s aerospace key players.

• To discuss the current economic situation, highlighted 
issues and challenges in the aerospace industry in general.

• To exchange ideas and thoughts on exploring collaboration 
and opportunities between the state of Selangor and 
Singapore aerospace company /key players.

Objectives:
• To create awareness to Malaysian company in the area 

of Automotive, Advanced E&E, Machinery & Equipment, 
Medical devices and Food & Beverages that has the 
appetite to embrace Industry 4.0 and to explore a 
potential partnership with Bavarian SMEs companies.

• To provide analysis of potential impact of industry 4.0 
and exploring the limits and possibilities.

• To provide in-depth knowledge on up-to-date case 
studies, real life examples and best practices.

• To provide an opportunity for the seminar participants 
(MNCs/SMEs) to have a chance to be considered as joint 
venture partner for more than 600 potential companies 
from the state of Bavaria via collaboration with Bayern 
International.

NETWORKING HI-TEA WITH SINGAPORE AEROSPACE 
COMPANY
9 OCTOBER 2017
INVEST SELANGOR

THE ROUND TABLE MEETING COLLABORATION 
AND OPPORTUNITIES BETWEEN THE STATE OF 
SELANGOR AND SINGAPORE AEROSPACE INDUSTRY 
IN CONJUNCTION WITH SINGAPORE AEROSPACE 
VISIT TO SELANGOR
9 OCTOBER 2017
SUBANG AIRPORT

BAVARIA INDUSTRY 4.0 WORKSHOP
21 AUGUST 2017
ISTANA SELANGOR, KUALA LUMPUR
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Objectives:

• Understanding UK’s technology landscape / ecosystem.
• Exploring business prospects.
• Fostering closer relationship between the UK and 

Selangor technological companies.
• Exchangng information & opinion related to the tech. 

industries.

UK MEGA TECH NETWORKING DINNER WITH THE 
RIGHT HON. DATO’ SERI MOHAMED AZMIN BIN ALI, 
THE CHIEF MINISTER OF SELANGOR
10 OCTOBER 2017
ISTANA SELANGOR
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SEMINAR AND
EXHIBITIONS

Objectives:

• Attending the conference and exhibition on the Halal 
industry. 

• Promoting investment opportunities in Selangor.
• Increasing networking with international companies 

especially in the Halal industries.

PARTICIPATION IN THE PENANG HALAL CONFERENCE 
& EXHIBITION
24 - 26 FEBRUARY 2017
SPICE ARENA (PISA), PULAU PINANG

Objectives:

• Providing understanding and clarification about the 
concept of Industrial Park Management. 

• Acquiring opinions and ideas from all Technical Agencies 
for the planning of implementation the new Industrial 
Park Management concept and drafting a proposal for 
the state government approval.

Objectives:
• Promoting investment opportunities in Selangor.
• Increasing networking with international companies for 

possible technological transfer.

PARTICIPATION IN LANGKAWI INTERNATIONAL 
MALAYSIA AEROSPACE (LIMA 17)
20 – 24 MARCH 2017
LANGKAWI

SELANGOR INDUSTRIAL PARK MANAGEMENT 
WORKSHOP 2017
8-9 MARCH 2017
PERTH HOTEL, SENAI, JOHOR

Objectives:

• Participating the Certification Bodies Conference to 
acquire in-depth knowledge and information on the 
procedure involved in the Halal certification process.

PARTICIPATION IN CERTIFICATION BODIES 
CONFERENCE 2017
3 – 4 APRIL 2017
SAMA SAMA HOTEL, KLIA
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Objectives:

• Main objective of SIBS is to place Selangor as the Global 
Gateway to ASEAN with the state functioning as the 
main trade and business hub in ASEAN.

• Also serves as a platform for local and international 
(multinational) companies to showcase their products and 
services in an effort to provide them the opportunities to 
entice investors to collaborate or invest in their business.

• Divided into three components:
    - Selangor Smart City Future Commerce Convention 2017.
   - Selangor ASEAN Business Conference.
   - Selangor International Expo 2017.

HOST OF SELANGOR INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS 
SUMMIT 2017 (SIBS)
7 – 14 SEPTEMBER 2017
SETIA CITY CONVENTION CENTRE (SCCC)

Objectives:

• Promoting investment opportunities in Selangor.
• Increasing networking with international companies 

especially in the Halal industries.

PARTICIPATION IN MALAYSIA INTERNATIONAL 
HALAL SHOWCASE (MIHAS)
4 – 7 APRIL 2017
KUALA LUMPUR CONVENTION CENTRE (KLCC)

Objectives:

• Invited as the Special guest at the Convergence 005: 
Business Intelligence; Emerging Technology Innovation 
Conference & Expo. The expo was held in conjunction 
with Singapore Week of Innovation and Technology 
(SWITCH) from 18 – 21 September 2017 at the Sands 
Expo & Convention Centre.

• Focusing on business revolution that is driven by 
latest technology like Augmented Reality, Virtual 
Reality, Robotic, IoT, Machine Learning, aligning to 
the development if Industrial Revolution 4.0 and the 
implementation of Selangor as a Smart City.

• Convergence 005 also includes an international 
conference with the keynote speakers selected from a 
group of renown corporate figures that are brought in 
from the Silicon Valley.

CONVERGENCE 005: BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE: 
EMERGING TECHNOLOGY INNOVATION CONFERENCE 
& EXPO
18 – 21 SEPTEMBER 2017
SINGAPORE
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Objectives:
• Promoting Selangor Aerospace Industry while exploring 

plausible collaborations with the companies and agencies 
attending the event.

• Acquiring the latest development and information on 
the maintenance, repair and operations (MRO) in the 
Aerospace industry.

Objectives:
• Promoting and showcasing Smart Selangor initiatives 

that have been implemented by the Selangor state 
government.

SELANGOR’S PARTICIPATION IN SMART CITY EXPO 
WORLD CONGRESS (SCEWC)
14 – 17 NOVEMBER 2017
BARCELONA

Objectives:
• Promoting Selangor Halal Industry while exploring 

plausible collaborations with the companies and agencies 
attending the event.

• Promoting the Selangor International Business Summit 
2018.

PARTICIPATION IN THE INDONESIAN FOOD 
INNOVATION (SIAL INTERFOOD INSPIRE FOOD 
BUSINESS 2017) IN JAKARTA INTERNATIONAL EXPO
22 – 24 NOVEMBER 2017
KEMAYORAN, JAKARTA

PARTICIPATION IN THE MRO ASIA-PACIFIC 
EXHIBITION
31 OCTOBER – 3 NOVEMBER 2017
SINGAPORE



INVEST SELANGOR  I  ANNUAL REPORT 2017 43

JANUARY

FEBRUARY

MARCH

6 January
Opening Ceremony of the BMCC British 
Business Centre in Malaysia at Wisma 
Selangor
Wisma Selangor

10 January
Welcome Back - Members’ Briefing by 
AMCHAM

16 January
The 6th Korea Malaysia Energy Cooperation 
Workshop
Renaissance Hotel KL

MDBC: Outlook 2017
MIDA Sentral

18 January
MDBC 2017 New Year’s Reception
Netherlands Ambassador’s Residence

19 January
MGCC New Year Sundowner 2017

24 January
MICCI-Bank Negara Malaysia Dialogue on 
Foreign Exchange Ruling
Bank Negara Malaysia

25 January
Follow-up Meeting with EUMCCI

Follow-up Meeting with BMCC

26 January
Follow-up Meeting with MGCC

7 February
Follow-up Meeting with CCIFM

8 February
Lunch Meeting with Netherlands 
Ambassador & MDBC
MDBC Office, Wisma Lim Foo Yong

8 February
Meeting with Spanish Trade Office

8 February
Meeting with JETRO

16 February
Meeting with KOCHAM

16 February
MGCC New Office Opening Ceremony
MGCC Office, Menara Hap Seng 2

22 February
Meeting with MGCC

15 March 
Ireland’s National Day Reception

31 March
Meeting on Biotechnology in Cuba with 
Ambassador of Cuba

BUSINESS
NETWORKING

01

02

03
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MAY

04

05

APRIL

3 April
AEI - Roundtable Discussion on The 
2017 Elections in the Netherlands with 
Netherlands Ambassador
Asia-Europe Institute, UM

4 April
BMCC Reception with Richard Graham MP
Intercontinental Hotel, KL

12 April
Opening of the Exhibition “GERMAN 
ENERGIEWENDE” Exhibition
Petronas Gallery, KLCC

18 April
Reception with German Embassy on the 
occasion of the visit to Malaysia of H.E. 
Ambassador Sabine Sparwasser, Director 
General for Political Affairs of the Federal 
Foreign Office

27 April
EU-Malaysia Trade & Investment Forum 2017
Sheraton Imperial Hotel KL

27 April
Netherlands King’s Day 2017 Reception

3 May
Amcham Panel Discussion on President 
Donald J. Trump’s 100 Days in Office: Where 
Are We At?
AMCHAM Executive Office

4 May
Evening Reception with Oxford Said 
Business School
British High Commissioner’s Residence

5 May
Europe Day 2017 Reception - ‘Rasa Eropah’ 
(Invitation by Delegation of the European 
Union to Malaysia)
Renaissance Hotel KL

24 May
ASEAN India Biztech Expo & Conference:
St. Regis KL

25 May
Austrian Networking Dinner on the occasion 
of the Austrian Group Exhibition at RAIL 
SOLUTIONS ASIA 2017
Kuala Lumpur Convention Centre (KLCC)
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09

08

07

06 JUNE

JULY

SEPTEMBER

15 June
Meeting with BMCC on Selangor 
International Business Summit 2017
BMCC Office

15 June
MGCC AGM 2017

16 June
BMCC AGM 2017
Grand Millennium Hotel KL

19 June
MDBC Connects Fair 2017
Parkroyal Kuala Lumpur

20 June
Meeting with Netherlands Embassy on 
Selangor Smart City & Future Commerce 
Convention 2017

21 June
Meeting with German Embassy on Selangor 
Smart City & Future Commerce Convention 
2017
Embassy of Germany

22 June
Special Briefing to Mission of ASEAN and 
Dialogue Partners on ASEAN Business 
Conference and Related Events 2017 by 
Invest Selangor

22 June
Meeting with British High Commission on 
Selangor Smart city & Future Commerce 
Convention 2017

22 June
Meeting with Embassy of Spain on Selangor 
Smart city & Future Commerce Convention 
2017
Economic and Commercial Office of Spain 
KL

29 June
Meeting with EUMCCI on Selangor 
International Business Summit 2017

6 July
Meeting with Embassy of Belgium
Head of Mission, Embassy of Belgium

21 July
Meeting with EUMCCI

26 September
MFCCI Back to Work Cocktail

AUGUST

1 August
Swiss National Day Reception

16 August
Meeting with Embassy of Finland
Deputy Head of Mission, Embassy of Finland

16 August
Singapore National Day Reception 2017

18 August
Meeting with MGCC
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11NOVEMBER

4 OCTOBER
German Unity Day

23 OCTOBER
Meeting with MGCC
MGCC Office

25 OCTOBER
MGCC Smart Cities Conference 2017
Renaissanes Hotel, Kuala Lumpur

25 OCTOBER
Austrian National Day
Austrian Embassy

14 November
Meeting with EUMCCI on Selangor 
International Business Summit 2018

15 November
Meeting with MICCI on Selangor 
International Business Summit 2018

15 November
National Day of Algeria 

16 November
Meeting with Swiss Business Hub ASEAN, 
Selangor International Business Summit 2018
Embassy of Switzerland

16 November
Meeting with Spanish Trade Office on 
Selangor International Business Summit 2018
Spanish Trade Office

16 November
Belgian King’s Day Reception

24 November
EUMCCI Europa Awards for Sustainability 
2017
Sheraton Imperial KL

28 November
Meeting with Royal Thai Embassy on 
Selangor International Business Summit 2018
Royal Thai Embassy

28 November
Meeting with Malaysian-Finnish Business 
Council on Selangor International Business 
Summit 2018
MFBC Office

10 OCTOBER
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SELANGOR
INTERNATIONAL 
BUSINESS SUMMIT 2017

One of the largest milestones for Selangor in the year 
2017 is the state’s hosting of the first ever Selangor 
International Business Summit in the Setia City 
Convention Centre (SCCC) from 7 – 17 September 
2017. One of the largest business events in Malaysia, 
the summit was designed to place Selangor as the 
Golden Gateway to ASEAN while creating a dynamic 
platform for the local and foreign Multinational 
Companies (MNCs), SMEs, entrepreneurs and any 
other corporate entities to exhibit their products, 
services and best practises in an effort to exchange 
knowledge, market their businesses and search for 
potential business collaborations.

In the previous years the Selangor International 
Expos were the largest business events Selangor had 
held but with the first ever Selangor International 
Business Summit, the International Expo was 
held along with the Selangor Smart City & Future 
Commerce Convention 2017, as well as Selangor 
-ASEAN Business Conference 2017 as part of the 
whole summit. The summit was a raving success as it 
garnered a total of 22, 071 visitors with 14,002 of the 
visitors being the general public while an impressive 
8,069 trade visitors came from all over the world. 
A total of 590 local and intenational booths were 
opened at the expo.

The Selangor International Expo was exceptionally 
successful, with a total 348 booths opened, 294 
of which were Malaysian booths while the other 
49 booths were International. The most pleasant 
surprise is the attendance to the Expo that had 
reached over 16,000 visitors with over 11,000 of 
them being the general public. This shows that the 
expo is not just merely a business event detached 
to the local communities. The expo had also seen 
Japan, India, Spain, Singapore and the United States 
being the top 5 countries that visited the expo.

The Selangor-ASEAN Business conference had 
seen over 101 renowned local and international 
business speakers and moderators convening and 
conferencing over two full days with topics like 
“Perspectives on ASEAN Economic Community”, 
“Priority Sectors Promoted by Selangor” and 
“Transformation to Digital Economy” being the 
hotbed of the conference. Over 3,500 participants 
from all over the world were involved in the 
conference. 

The Selangor International Business Summit 2017 
also hosted the Selangor Smart City & Future 
Commerce Convention 2017. Specifically aimed to 
pull future and high value industries as part of the 
Selangor Smart City blueprint, the convention’s 
exhibition featured 261 booths, 55% of which were 
Malaysian, while the other 45% were international. 
A total of 5,000 visitors attended the convention, 
with 3,000 of them being from general public while 
2,000 were trade visitors. Out of the 5000 public 
visitors, over 3000 of them were participants at the 
sub-events and conferences. The convention also 
included the Smart City Forum, Green City Forum, 
Top E-Commerce Merchant Awards Ceremony, and 
the Smart City & Future Commerce Hackathon, 
which attracted over 3,000 participants.

As a whole the Selangor International Business 
Summit 2017 was a monumental success and a 
monolithic milestone in Selangor’s conquest to 
become the Golden Gate of ASEAN. It had paved way 
to tenth and thousands of business collaborations 
and plausible connections and would become an 
annual landmark event for Selangor, Malaysia and 
ASEAN for years to come.
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In the age of knowledge economy, the success of an 
economic expansion and development relies heavily 
on human capital, particularly those that come from 
a younger and fresher age. Development of talents 
to inject dynamism into the economic growth 
has been a key ingredient in the new age global 
economic climate. 

In Malaysia, Selangor stands as one of the most 
bountiful talent development resources. With a 
population of 6.4million and the urbanisation rate 
of 91.4%, Selangor has become a talent gold mine 
recognised by local and global investors. 

By the end of 2017, more than 170 universities and 
higher learning institutions had been established 
in Selangor and with over 270 public schools and 
over 40 international schools, Selangor is producing 
more than 40,000 graduates each year. This has 
been the main reason why Selangor has cumulated 
a total of over 3.4 million highly-skilled multilingual 
experts in its workforce capital. 

To further improve the talent pool in Selangor, 
Invest Selangor has taken a bold move to introduce 
the Invest Selangor Talent Initiative, a project that 
seeks to create the connections and networking 
between education institutions to the stakeholders 
in the actual industries. The contention is to create 
awareness among students especially in Higher 
Learning Institutions (HIEs) and to foster business 
matching and coaching that is particularly catered 
for the industry.

INVEST SELANGOR
TALENT INITIATIVE
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AEROSPACE, 
BIOTECHNOLOGY, ICT
AND HALAL SECTORS

COUNCILS IN THE

Aerospace is an industry that had been recognized 
to be one of the most lucrative gold mines in the 
global economic market that is targeted to grow to 
USD352.5 billion by 2023.
 
Today, Malaysia is home to about 200 aerospace 
companies and the aim of the Malaysia Aerospace 
Industry is to become ASEAN’s biggest aerospace 
player with total revenue of RM55.2 billion, that 
would generate over 30,000 high income job 
opportunities.
 
In an effort to be part of such a dynamic Industry, 
Selangor had gathered experts and top players in 
the aerospace industries that include manufacturers, 
academicians, policy makers, representatives of 
relevant ministries and federal agencies as well 
as aerospace researchers to form the Selangor 
Aerospace Council.

With Invest Selangor as the platform, the Selangor 
Aerospace Council strategically oversees the 
development of the aerospace industry in Selangor. 
The Selangor state government has been working 
closely with the Federal Government to secure 
Malaysia’s position as one of the three main 
aerospace industry centres internationally.

Selangor had heeded the call by the Malaysian 
government by preparing to launch its own Selangor 
Aerospace Action Plan 2018 – 2028. Invest Selangor 
as its main stakeholder will draft a strategic guideline 
to improve and enhance the aerospace industry in 
the state.

To position the state as a recognized aerospace hub 
in the world, an independent organisation would be 
appointed to plan and manage strategic programmes 
and industry sit downs, conduct relevant research, 
and relay the findings of the research to the council 
for further improvements.

With the plan commencing in May 2017, a collective 
collaborations with Higher Learning Institutes, 
industry players, government agencies as well as 
SMEs work together to bring the best out of the 
state’s capabilities in the aerospace industry. One 
of such collective effort can be seen in the 3S 
Aerospace belt of Subang, Serendah and Sepang 
that is fast becoming Asia’s aerospace hotspot. 

In 2017, the Invest Selangor had been involved in 10 
aerospace strategic activities that include technical 
visits, participation in summits and aerospace shows 
as well as workshops and discussions. Most notably 
is the participation in LIMA 2017, MRO Asia Pacific 
and Dubai Air Show. During LIMA 2017, two MoUs 
were signed: one with the MARA Aerospace and 
Technology Sdn. Bhd.; and secondly with Malaysia 
Airport Holdings Berhad (MAHB) to place Selangor 
as the leading aerospace hub in Malaysia.

SELANGOR
AEROSPACE 
COUNCIL
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The Global Agricultural Biotechnology market 
accounted for USD20.19 billion in 2017 and is 
expected to reach USD51.93 billion by 2026 growing 
at a CAGR of 11.1%. Some of the key factors influencing 
the market growth include increasing demand for 
bio fuels, growing transgenic crops demand owing 
to rising food demand, rising per capita income and 
growing population size. 

Likewise, Malaysia had joined the race to improve 
its biotechnological industries given to its rich 
potential and possibilities. Up until November 2017, 
investments worth RM6.7 billion originating from 
340 biotechnology firms had been made in Malaysia.

Between 2011 – 2015, the biotech industry has 
generated a total income of RM2.7 billion, while 
creating a total of 31,000 job opportunities and 
the growth is becoming huge recently. In fact, from 
2016 to September 2017 alone, 283 firms had been 
granted the BioNexus status - a certification given to 
biotechnological companies that meet the criteria of 
the National Biotechnology Policy. BioNexus-status 
companies also recorded an average annual growth 
rate of 15% in terms of revenue generation from 
2008 (RM382.8 million) to the first two quarters of 
2016 to RM822.7 million.

Although the industry is fairly new, there are 
realisations that biotechnology is highly important 
to the Malaysian economic growth. Two of the most 
important reasons being: one, the huge agricultural 
industry in Malaysia needs to evolve, with expansion 
into biotechnology imminent; and secondly, 
Malaysia has been known to be one of the few mega-
biodiversity countries in the world that posses a 
rich gene pool  comprising of an estimated 15,500 
known species of plants, 300  species of mammals, 
150,000  species of  invertebrates with insects being 
the largest single group, 1,200 species of butterflies, 
12,000 species of moths and over 8,000 species of 
fishes. 

The vast growth of biotechnology economy has 
significantly spilled into the borders of Selangor 
as well. Selangor is home to more than 30% of 
businesses and companies in Malaysia that had 
been awarded the BioNexus status. From 2013 – 
2017 the annual average direct investment within 
the biotechnology industry in Selangor reached a 
staggering average of RM959.67 million.

Recognising that a huge amount of the 
biotechnological companies operate within the 
domain of Selangor, Invest Selangor had taken the 
initiative to form the Selangor Biotech Council that 
comprises of experts that come from educational 
institutions, stakeholders in the industry as well as 
government entities and bodies. 

The main role of the council is to facilitate and 
advise biotechnological companies on the optimal 
operational conditions that can be obtained in 
Selangor. To date, the council includes eminent 
names in biotechnology like Prof. Emeritus Dato’ 
Dr. Abdul Latif Ibrahim, as well as Dr. Mahaletchumy 
Arujunan: one of the top ten most influential persons 
globally in the field of biotechnology.

Selangor’s seriousness in the field of biotechnology 
peaked with the creation of the remarkable Selangor 
Bio Bay (SBB). Launched by The Right Honourable 
Dato’ Menteri Besar Selangor, Dato’ Seri Mohamed 
Azmin bin Ali on 24 September 2017 at the Selangor 
Bio Bay Show Gallery, the mega project costs RM5.5 
billion and spans over 100 acres of land in Pulau Indah, 
filled with biotechnology-based infrastructures 
that include industrial and commercial zones, 
biotechnological research institutes, laboratories, 
and many more. The SBB is seen as the hub to bio 
technological advancement in Selangor with state-
of-the-art facilities that would become yet another 
definitive feature of Selangor. 

Invest Selangor specifically, has also been a major 
catalyst to the development of biotechnology in 
Selangor. To bolster knowledge in the field, Invest 
Selangor had participated in BioAsia Biotech 
Convention 2017 in Hyderabad as well as World 
Congress on Industrial Biotechnology in Montreal 
Canada. External effort to promote the Selangor Bio 
Bay went as far as looking at the establishment of 
collaboration with Cuba. 

SELANGOR
BIOTECH INDUSTRY
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E-Commerce is the new face of the retail economy. 
In 2017, retail e-commerce sales worldwide reached 
an astounding USD2.304 trillion and the sales value 
is expected to grow to USD4.878 trillion by 2021. 
While it is considered relatively low, e-commerce 
constitutes 10.2% of total global retail sales. By 
2030, it is expected to comprise nearly 50% of the 
global retail economy.

In Malaysia, e-commerce contribution to Malaysia’s 
gross domestic product (GDP) increased to 6.1 per 
cent (or RM74.6 billion) in 2016, as compared to 5.9 
per cent (or 68.3 billion) in 2015. In 2017, a major 
Malaysian online marketplace, Lazada, announced 
that over RM1.0 billion worth of Gross Merchandise 
Value (GMV) had been garnered during the famous 
Single’s Day sale (11.11 Sale). 

The 2017 study titled e-Conomy SEA Google & 
Temasek found that South-East Asians are the 
number one users of mobile internet, above any 
other region’s population. As such, it is expected 
that the e-commerce market in Malaysia would 
indeed become increasingly relevant.

Selangor, being the main engine to Malaysia’s 
economy, is not left behind in this retail economy 
revolution. One of the most important milestones for 
the state is the formation of the Selangor Information 
Technology and E-Commerce Council (SITEC), that 
aims to be a mediating and assistance platform 
for the startup and development of e-commerce 
businesses, especially SMEs.    

In June 2015, SITEC was launched, bringing with 
it a commitment to pursue its four thrusts of 
e-commerce. The first is ‘Online 100’, which is a 
digitization programme specifically to assist ‘brick 
and mortar merchants’ transition to online retail. 
The second is ‘Apps 100’ that provides Online 100  
e-merchants with mobile app stores. The other two 
thrusts are the creation of the 11,000 sqft incubator 
and co-working space, the Selangor Digital Creative 
Centre (SDCC); and the extension of educational 
opportunities given to e-commerce players through 
e-Commerce classes, workshops, conferences and 
other e-commerce networking or showcase events.

A total of 58 e-commerce classes were conducted 
since its inception in 2015, and approximately 
180,000 individuals were reached out to, mainly 
startups, SMEs, and players in e-commerce, Smart 
City and technology. Over 300 apps were created for 
‘Online 100’ merchants and as many as 300 Selangor 
retailers have been trained to be e-commerce ready 
under the Online 100 initiative. Under SITEC, six 
major e-commerce events were organized, together 
with three Smart City events. 

With numerous strategic initiatives spanning 
e-Commerce, Startups and Smart City through 
SITEC’s Online 100, Apps 100, SITEC Academy, 
e-commerce classes, Top E-Commerce Merchant 
Awards, and more, Selangor is poised to be a key 
player in the industry of e-Commerce and the Digital 
Economy.

SELANGOR INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY AND 
E-COMMERCE COUNCIL (SITEC)
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The post 9/11 world had seen a striking increase of 
awareness on the existence of the global Muslim 
communities. While a negative outlook on the Muslim 
community has grown, in business and economics 
it has created an awareness on the existence and 
strength of the global Muslim retail and investment 
markets. 

The halal economy is expected to grow to USD6.4 
trillion by 2018 in a latest report, against a projection 
of USD3.2 trillion reported in 2012. This is a 
reflection of the ways in which the halal economy 
over the years has steadily established itself within 
the system of the global economy, driven primarily 
by a large, young, and fast-growing global Muslim 
demographic. According to a study by the Pew 
Research, the global Muslim population is expected 
to rise from 1.7 billion in 2014 to 2.2 billion by 2030 - 
rising by 26.4 percent.

In Malaysia, the Halal industries carried a worth of 
RM 43.4 billion in Halal export. In total, a number of 
384 MNCs, 631 small businesses, and 546 SMEs had 
been registered as certified exporting companies 
or entities. The food and beverage industry was 
the largest export value at RM20.1 billion, followed 
by halal ingredients, palm oil derivatives, as well as 
cosmetics and personal care products

Heeding the call of the Halal Industry, Selangor 
had been an active player in all of the halal sub-
industries. One of its most recognized effort is the 
creation of the Halal International Selangor (Aspire 
Flagship  Sdn. Bhd.) a body that aims to maximise 

Selangor’s potential in Halal industries by facilitating 
the ecosystem in the GHTTI and connecting all the 
key players with one another, while opening up 
more opportunities for prospective Halal assured 
organisations looking to expand across international 
borders.

In recent endeavours, Halal International Selangor 
created the Pulau Indah Halal Hub off the coast 
of Klang, in Selangor. Spanning over 700 acres of 
land, the hub is equipped infrastructures that could 
effectively host halal food processing, cosmetics, 
pharmaceuticals and clothing manufacturing 
plants and business setup that would be given 
contemporary upgrades in accordance to the 
latest development in halal production technology. 
The hub is also aimed to help food and beverage 
manufacturers to obtain global benchmarks and 
standards such as ISO 9000, Codex Alimentarius, 
QA, HACCP, Good Hygienic Practice (GHP), and 
SOPs.

Another initiative by the Selangor government 
is the creation of the HTCP or the Halal Technical 
Competent Person Programme, which is a two-month 
intensive and comprehensive halal competency 
training programme aimed at equipping individuals 
and companies to be strong players in the Global 
Halalan Toyyiban Trade and Industries (GHTTI). The 
syllabus used for the HTCP programme amount 
to 40 modules and have been made and will be 
facilitated by key players in the Halal industry that 
are known for their best halal practice locally and 
internationally.

HALAL INTERNATIONAL 
SELANGOR (HIS)
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ACHIEVEMENTS
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As the manufacturing hub of Malaysia, Selangor has played a leading role in the country’s industrial 
transformation and economic expansion over several decades. The state has been contributing an increasingly 
larger share to the Malaysian economy, reaching 23% of the country’s gross domestic product (GDP) in 2017.

5-YEAR INVESTMENT 
PERFORMANCE
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Reflecting its importance to the Malaysian economy, 
Selangor continues to attract investments in its 
progressively diversified manufacturing sector. Over 
the last six years, the Golden State of Malaysia drew 
in direct investments totalling RM49.99 billion for 
1,375 manufacturing projects. Of the total, domestic 
direct investments (DDI) accounted for a larger 
share with RM29.52 billion, while foreign direct 
investments (FDI) amounted to RM20.47 billion. In 
2017, the approved investments for manufacturing 
in the state totalled RM5.59 billion, with DDI coming 
in at RM3.43 billion and FDI at RM2.16 billion. In total 
202 manufacturing projects were approved that had 
created 10,031 potential employment in the state.

Selangor remained substantial at the GDP growth 
of 7.1 per cent (2016: 4.8%) with service and 
manufacturing sectors propelling the growth. With 
the support of finance & insurance, wholesale & 
retail trade, communication, real estate and business 

services sub-sectors , services sector grew to 6.8 
per cent (2016: 6.0%) while manufacturing grew 
7.9% with motor vehicles & transport equipment 
and electrical and electronic sub-sectors being the 
main avenue for the growth. The increase in oil palm 
production and fisheries activities has stimulated 
the better growth in agriculture sector to 13.1 per 
cent (2016: -6.4 %) while the growth of 8.0 per cent 
(2016: -2.0%) in construction sector was contributed 
by civil engineering sub sector.

The healthy flow of FDI into the state is further 
testimony to Selangor’s competitive and strategic 
position as Malaysia’s manufacturing engine as well 
as growing economic integration with the ASEAN 
region that is home to over 600 million people. The 
five largest foreign investors in Selangor in 2017 - 
Japan, Singapore, China, Netherlands and Germany 
-- brought in a total RM1.57 billion, or 72.30%, of the 
FDI into the state. 

The unveiling of the Selangor Smart State 2025 
blueprint, together with the ongoing drive to rapidly 
adopt the digital transformation and foster greater 
innovation among its people, would provide a solid 
foundation to help transition the economy into 
higher-technology industries. This would ensure 
that Selangor continues to offer strategic and 
competitive advantages that would help investors 
grow their business in the region.

Invest Selangor will continue to build on its close 
relations with the relevant federal government 
agencies such as the Malaysian Investment 
Development Authority (MIDA), Malaysia External 
Trade Development Corporation (MATRADE), 
BioEconomy Corporation and Malaysia Digital 
Economy Corporation (MDEC), to promote Selangor 
as a premier investment destination in Malaysia and 
the region
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5-YEAR INVESTMENT 
PERFORMANCE

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 December 2013 to 2017

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

RM RM RM RM RM

ASSETS

Non-Current Asset

Property, Plant and Equipment 1,510,596 1,248,745 976,814 746,126 554,865

Total Non-Current Assets 1,510,596 1,248,745 976,814 746,126 554,865

Current Assets

Trade Receivables - - - 187,199 1,495,034

Other Receivables 430,491 343,572 764,685 1,186,100

Amount Due From Holding Company 1,000,000 3,000,000 3,800,000 -

Fixed Deposits With A Licensed
   Financial Institution

2,000,000 - 2,000,000 4,000,000 3,000,000

Cash And Bank Balance 817,201 2,054,773 2,533,960 1,816,007 829,518

Tax Recoverable - - - - -

Total Current Assets 4,247,692 5,398,345 9,098,645 7,189,306 5,324,552

TOTAL ASSETS 5,758,288 6,647,090 10,075,459 7,935,432 5,879,417

EQUITY AND LIABILITY

Equity

Share Capital 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Retained Earnings 3,543,791 4,469,589 6,604,505 4,650,083 3,593,907

Total Equity 5,543,791 6,469,589 8,604,505 6,650,083 5,593,907

Current Liability

Other Payables 214,497 176,683 1,451,688 1,260,333 264,150

Tax Payables - 818 19,266 25,016 21,360

Total Current Liability 214,497 177,501 1,470,954 1,285,349 285,510

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITY 5,78,288 6,647,090 10,075,459 7,935,432 5,879,417
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

RM RM RM RM RM

REVENUE

Government Grant 6,600,000 6,600,000 6,600,000 16,947,391 17,745,427

Other Income 265,526 390,782 384,846 698,152 1,105,962

TOTAL REVENUE 6,865,526 6,990,782 6,984,846 17,645,453 18,851,389

EXPENSES (6,332,812) (5,953,172) (6,033,569) (15,467,179) (20,763,300)

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 532,714 1,037,610 951,277 2,178,364 1,911,911

TAX EXPENSES (18,510) - (25,479) (43,448) (42,511)

NET PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 514,204 1,037,610 925,798 2,134,916 (1,954,422)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
     THE FINANCIAL YEAR 514,204 1,037,610 925,798 2,134,916 (1,954,422)
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HIGHLIGHTS
MEDIA
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INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
Company No.: 481741 - M

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors have pleasure in presenting their report together with the audited financial statements of the 
Company for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company consist of general investment advisory and consultancy services.
There have been no significant changes in nature of the principal activities during the year.

RESULTS
  
                                                                                                                                                             RM 
Loss for the year                                                                                                     (1,056,176)

In the opinion of the directors, the results of the operations of the Company during the year have not been 
substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature. 

DIVIDENDS

No dividends have been paid, declared or proposed since the end of the previous year.

DIRECTORS

The names of the directors of the Company in office since the date of the last report and at the date of this 
report are:-

Y.A.B Dato’ Seri Mohamed Azmin bin Ali   
YB. Dato’ Mohd Amin bin Ahmad Ahya   
YBhg. Dato’ Noordin bin Sulaiman
YB. Dato’ Teng Chang Khim
YBhg. Dato’ Hasan Azhari bin Idris
YB. Dato’ Nor Azmie bin Diron      

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS
    
Neither at the end of the year, nor at any time during that year, did there subsists any arrangements to which 
the Company was a party, whereby the directors might acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares 
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate. 
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INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
Company No.: 481741 - M

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS (CONT’D)
    
Since the end of the previous year, no director has received or become entitled to receive a benefit (other than 
benefits included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by the directors as 
disclosed in note to the financial statements or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company) by 
reason of a contract made by the Company or a related corporation with any director or with a firm of which 
the director is a member, or with a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the register of directors’ shareholding under Section 59 of the Companies Act 2016, the interests 
of directors in office at the end of the year in the ordinary shares of the Company during the year were as 
follows:-

Number of Ordinary Shares in the Company
Shareholdings in the name of the director

As at
1.1.2017

Allotted /
Bought  Sold

As at
31.12.2017            

Dato’ Hasan Azhari bin Idris 1 - - 1

None of the other directors in office at the end of the year had any interest in shares in the Company during 
the year.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATIONS

The amounts of the remunerations of the directors or past directors of the Company comprising remunerations 
received/receivable from the Company during the year are as follows:

RM

Remunerations 462,531

Fees 50,000

512,531

 
INDEMNIFYING DIRECTORS, OFFICERS OR AUDITORS

No indemnities have been given or insurance premiums paid, during or since the end of the year, for any 
person who is or has been the director, officer or auditor of the Company.
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INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
Company No.: 481741 - M

RESERVES AND PROVISIONS

There were no material transfers to or from reserves and provisions during the year.

ISSUE OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

The Company did not issue any shares or debentures during the year.

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION

(a) Before the financial statements of the of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable 
steps:

(i) to ascertain that proper action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the 
making of allowance for doubtful debts and  satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been 
written off and that adequate allowance had been made for doubtful debts; and

(ii) to ensure that any current assets which were unlikely to realise their value as shown in the accounting 
records of the Company had been written down to an amount which they might be expected so to 
realise.

(b) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render:

(i) the amount written off for bad debts or the amount of the allowance for doubtful debts in the financial 
statements of the Company inadequate to any substantial extent; and

(ii) the values attributed to the current assets in the financial statements of the Company misleading.

(c) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which would 
render adherence to the existing method of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Company misleading 
or inappropriate.

(d) At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in 
this report or financial statements of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial 
statements misleading.

(e) At the date of this report, there does not exist:

(i) any charge on the assets of the Company which has arisen since the end of the year which secures 
the liabilities of any other person; or

(ii) any contingent liability in respect of the Company which has arisen since the end of the year.



INVEST SELANGOR  I  ANNUAL REPORT 2017 67

INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
Company No.: 481741 - M

OTHER STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(f) In the opinion of the directors:

(i) no contingent or other liability has become enforceable or is likely to become enforceable within the 
period of twelve months after the end of the year which will or may affect the ability of the Company 
to meet its obligations when they fall due; and

(ii) no item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature has arisen in the interval between the 
end of the year and the date of this report which is likely to affect substantially the results of the 
operations of the Company for the year in which this report is made.

HOLDING COMPANY

The Company regards Menteri Besar Incorporated, a corporation incorporated in Malaysia as the Holding 
Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATIONS

Total amounts paid to or receivable by the auditors as remunerations for their services as auditors are as 
follows:
 

2017

RM

Audit 29,552

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR

Details of significant events are disclosed in Notes 20 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

The auditors, MNZWAJA, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.
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Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

DATO’ NOR AZMIE BIN DIRON

DATO’ HASAN AZHARI BIN IDRIS

Shah Alam
Date:
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STATEMENT BY DIRECTORS
Pursuant to Section 251 (2) of the Companies Act 2016

We, DATO’ NOR AZMIE BIN DIRON and DATO’ HASAN AZHARI BIN IDRIS being two of the directors of 
INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD, do hereby state that, in the opinion of the directors, the financial statements of 
the Company which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and the statement 
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, are drawn up in 
accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Company as at 31 December 2017 and of its financial performance and cash flows of the 
Company for the year then ended.

Signed on behalf of the Board in accordance with a resolution of the directors.

DATO’ NOR AZMIE BIN DIRON    DATO’ HASAN AZHARI BIN IDRIS
 
Shah Alam
Date:                         

STATUTORY DECLARATION
Pursuant to Section 251 (1) (b) of the Companies Act 2016

I, DATO’ HASAN AZHARI BIN IDRIS, being the director primarily responsible for the financial management 
of INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statement of the 
Company which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2017 and the statement 
of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended and summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, are in my opinion 
correct, and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true and by virtue of the 
provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act, 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared  )
by the above named    )
DATO’ HASAN AZHARI BIN IDRIS              )
at Petaling Jaya in the state of                   )
Selangor on this         )   
       DATO’ HASAN AZHARI BIN IDRIS
         
Before me,

Commissioner for Oaths   
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
Company No.: 481741 - M

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD, which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at 31 December 2017 of the Company, and the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows of the Company for the year then ended, and 
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
Company as at 31 December 2017, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 
in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International 
Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence and Other Ethical Responsibilities

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the By-Laws (on Professional Ethics, Conduct and 
Practice) of Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“By Laws”) and the International Ethics Standards Board for 
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“IESBA Code”), and we have fulfilled our other 
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the By-Laws and the IESBA Code.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the Directors’ Report but does not include the financial statements of the Company and our auditors’ report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements of the Company does not cover the Directors’ Report and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF (CONT’D)

INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon (Cont’d)

In connection with our audit of the financial statements of the Company, our responsibility is to read the 
Directors’ Report and, in doing so, consider whether the Directors’ Report is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements of the Company or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is material misstatement of the Directors’ 
report, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements 

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements of the Company that 
give a true and fair view in accordance with Malaysian Financial  Reporting Standards, International Financial 
Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. The directors are also 
responsible for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements of the Company that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements of the Company, the directors are responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements of the Company 
as a whole are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report 
that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards 
on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of user taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF (CONT’D)

INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
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Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (cont’d)

As part of audit in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia and International Standards 
on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:

 - Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements of the Company, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.  The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

 - Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

 - Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

 - Conclude on the appropriateness of the director’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements of the Company or, 
if such disclosure are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

 - Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements of the 
Company, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements of the Company 
represent the underlying transactions and events in manner that achieves fair presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF (CONT’D)

INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
Company No.: 481741 - M

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Cont’d)

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 266 of 
the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other 
person for the content of this report.

 

MNZWAJA        Taqiyuddin Amini bin Abdul Satar
AF 001959          02378/09/2018 J
Chartered Accountants               Chartered Accountant

Shah Alam
Date: 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2017

Note 2017 2016

RM RM

NON-CURRENT ASSET

Property, plant and equipment 4 554,865 746,126

Total non-current asset 554,865 746,126

CURRENT ASSETS

Trade and other receivables 5 1,495,034 1,319,190

Fixed deposits 6 3,000,000 4,000,000

Cash and cash equivalents 7 829,518 1,816,007

Total current assets 5,324,552 7,135,197

TOTAL ASSETS 5,879,417 7,881,323

EQUITY

Share capital 8 2,000,000 2,000,000

Retained earnings 3,593,907 4,650,083

TOTAL EQUITY 5,593,907 6,650,083

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 9 264,150 1,206,224

Taxation 21,360 25,016

TOTAL LIABILITIES 285,510 1,231,240

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 5,879,417 7,881,323

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the Year Ended 31 December 2017

Note 2017 2016

RM RM

Revenue 10 20,994,839 17,745,427

Other income 1,296,777 1,105,962

22,291,616 18,851,389

Marketing and promotion expenses 11 (14,622,743) ( 13,087,767)

Administrative and operating expenses 12 (8,681,170) ( 7,675,533)

Loss before taxation 13 (1,012,297) ( 1,911,911)

Taxation 16 (43,879) ( 42,511)

Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,056,176) ( 1,954,422)

Total comprehensive loss attributable to:

     Owner of the Company (1,056,176) ( 1,954,422)

Total comprehensive loss for the year (1,056,176) ( 1,954,422)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the Year Ended 31 December 2017

Share
capital

Retained
earnings Total

RM RM RM

As at 1.1.2016 2,000,000 6,604,505 8,604,505

Loss for the year - (1,954,422) (1,954,422)

As at 31.12.2016 2,000,000 4,650,083 6,650,083

Loss for the year - (1,056,176) (1,056,176)

As at 31.12.2017 2,000,000 3,593,907 5,593,907

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016

RM RM

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation (1,012,297) (1,911,911)

Adjustment for:

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 441,212 332,854

Interest income (164,249) (177,230)

Operating loss before working capital changes (735,334) (1,756,287)

Changes in working capital:

(Increase)/decrease in receivables (175,844) 3,191,386

Decrease in payables (942,074) (191,355)

Cash from operation (1,853,252) 1,243,744

Interest received 164,249 177,230

Tax paid (47,535) (36,761)

Net cash (outflows)/inflows from operating activities (1,736,538) 1,384,213

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (249,951) (102,166)

Net cash outflows from investing activities (249,951) (102,166)

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,986,489) 1,282,047

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 5,816,007 4,533,960

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 3,829,518 5,816,007

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents included in the statements

     of cash flows comprises the following:

Cash and bank balances 829,518 1,816,007

Fixed deposits 3,000,000 4,000,000

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 3,829,518 5,816,007

 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 

1.   CORPORATE INFORMATION
 

The principal activities of the Company consist of general investment advisory and consultancy services.

There have been no significant changes in the nature of the principal activities during the year.

The registered office and principal place of business of the Company is located at No. F1-2-G Jalan 
Multimedia 7/AG, Citypark, I-City, 40000 Shah Alam, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

The Company is a public limited liability company, incorporated and domiciled in Malaysia.

The total number of employees of the Company at the year end was 47 (2016: 42).

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical basis and are ringgit Malaysia 
(RM), which is the Company’s functional currency.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with resolution 
of the Directors on                             

2.   BASIS OF PREPARATION

a)    Basis of measurement

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Malaysian Financial 
Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), and the 
requirement of the Companies Act 2016 in Malaysia. 

 
b)    Statement of compliance

The following are accounting standards, amendments and interpretations that have been issued by 
the Malaysian Accounting Standards Board (“MASB”) but are not yet effective nor early adopted by 
the Company:

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2018

•    MFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014)
•    MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers
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INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017

2.   BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

b)    Statement of compliance (cont’d)

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2018 (cont’d)

• Clarifications to MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
• IC Interpretation 22, Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration 
• Amendments to MFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (Annual 

Improvements to MFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle) 
• Amendments to MFRS 2, Share-based Payment – Classification and Measurement of Share-based 

Payment Transactions
• Amendments to MFRS 4, Insurance Contracts – Applying MFRS 9 Financial Instruments with 

MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts 
• Amendments to MFRS 128, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Annual Improvements 

to MFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle) 
• Amendments to MFRS 140, Investment Property – Transfers of Investment Property 

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2019

• MFRS 16, Leases 

MFRSs, Interpretations and amendments effective for a date yet to be confirmed 

• Amendments to MFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and MFRS 128, Investments 
in Associatesand Joint Ventures – Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its 
Associate or Join enture

The Company plan to apply the above mentioned accounting standards, amendments and 
interpretations, where applicable:

• from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2018 for those accounting standards, amendments 
and interpretations that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, 
except for Amendments to MFRS 1, Amendments to MFRS 2, Amendments to MFRS 4, and 
Amendments to MFRS 140; and 

• from the annual period beginning on 1 January 2019 for those accounting standards that is 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017

2.   BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONT’D)

b)    Statement of compliance (cont’d)

The initial application of the accounting standards, amendments or interpretations are not expected 
to have any material financial impact to the current period and prior period financial statements of 
the Company except as mentioned below: 

(i)    MFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

MFRS 15 replaces the guidance in MFRS 111, Construction Contracts, MFRS 118, Revenue, IC 
Interpretation 13, Customer Loyalty Programmes, IC Interpretation 15, Agreements for Construction 
of Real Estate, IC Interpretation 18, Transfers of Assets from Customers and IC Interpretation 131, 
Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services. 

The Company are currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from the adoption of 
MFRS 15. 

(ii)  MFRS 9, Financial Instruments 

MFRS 9 replaces the guidance in MFRS 139, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement 
on the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, and on hedge 
accounting. 

The Company are currently assessing the financial impact that may arise from the adoption of 
MFRS 9.

c)    Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with MFRSs requires management to make 
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the 
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these 
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods 
affected.

There are no significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting 
policies that have significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017

3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

a)    Financial instruments

(i)    Initial recognition and measurement

A financial asset or a financial liability is recognised in the statement of financial position when, 
and only when, the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial instrument is recognised initially at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial 
instrument not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument.

An embedded derivative is recognised separately from the host contract and accounted for as a 
derivative if, and only if, it is not closely related to the economic characteristics and risks of the 
host contract and the host contract is not categorised at fair value through profit or loss. The 
host contract, in the event an embedded derivative is recognised separately, is accounted for in 
accordance with the policy applicable to the nature of the host contract.

(ii)   Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement

The Company categories financial instruments as follows:

Financial assets

a)   Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial assets that are held for trading, 
including derivatives (except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated 
and effective hedging instrument) or financial assets that are specifically designated into this 
category upon initial recognition.

Derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of unquoted equity instruments 
whose fair values cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost.

Other financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured 
at their fair values with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017

3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

a)    Financial instruments (cont’d)

(ii)  Financial instrument categories and subsequent measurement (cont’d)

The Company categories financial instruments as follows:

Financial assets (cont’d)

b)  Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables category comprises debt instruments that are not quoted in an active  
market.

Financial assets categorised as loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities, other than those categorised as fair value through profit or loss, are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost. 

Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are derivatives (except for 
a derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging instrument), 
contigent consideration in a business combination or financial liabilities that are specifically designated 
into this category upon initial recognition.

Derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of equity instruments that do not have 
a quoted price in an active market for identical instruments whose fair values otherwise cannot be 
reliably measured are measured at cost.

Other financial liabilities categorised as fair value through profit or loss are subsequently measured 
at their fair values with the gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.
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INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
Company No.: 481741 - M

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017

3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

a)    Financial instruments (cont’d)

(iii) Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments 
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment 
when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Fair value arising from financial guarantee contracts are classified as deferred income and is 
amortised to profit or loss using a straight-line method over the contractual period or, when 
there is no specified contractual period, recognised in profit or loss upon discharge of the 
guarantee.  When settlement of a financial guarantee contract becomes probable, an estimate 
of the obligation is made.  If the carrying value of the financial guarantee contract is lower than 
the obligation, the carrying value is adjusted to the obligation amount and accounted for as a 
provision.

(iv) Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets

A regular way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract whose 
terms require delivery of the asset within the time frame established generally by regulation or 
convention in the marketplace concerned.

(v)   Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets

A regular way purchase or sale of financial assets is recognised and derecognised, as applicable, 
using trade date accounting. Trade date accounting refers to:

(a)  the recognition of an asset to be received and the liability to pay for it on the trade date, 
       and

(b)  the derecognition of an asset that is sold, recognition of any gain or loss on disposal and 
       the recognition of a receivable from the buyer for payment on the trade date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017

3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

a)    Financial instruments (cont’d)

(vi) Derecognition

A financial asset or a part thereof is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights to 
the cash flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is transferred to another party 
without retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. On derecognition of 
a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration 
received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative 
gain or loss that had been recognised in equity is recognised in the profit or loss.

A financial liability or a part thereof is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified 
in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired. On derecognition of a financial liability, the 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities 
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

b)    Property, plant and equipment

(i)    Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation 
and any accumulated impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and any 
other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use, 
and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are 
located. The cost of self-constructed assets also includes the cost of materials and direct labour. 
For qualifying assets, borrowing costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy 
on borrowing costs. 

When significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, 
they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
 
The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined by 
comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment 
and is recognised net within “other income” and “administrative expenses” respectively in profit 
or loss.
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INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
Company No.: 481741 - M

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017

3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

b)    Property, plant and equipment (cont’d)

(ii)   Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised 
in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied 
within the component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The 
carrying amount of the replaced component is derecognised to profit or loss. The costs of the 
day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of 
individual assets are assessed, and if a component has a useful life that is different from the 
remainder of that asset, then that component is depreciated separately.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives 
of each component of an item of property, plant and equipment. 

The principal rates used are as follows:

             Rate

   Motor vehicles          20%
   Furniture and fittings         10%
   Office equipment         10%
   Office renovation         10%
   Computers     33.33%

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at end of the reporting 
period, and adjusted as appropriate.

Upon the disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment, the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the net carrying amount is recognized in the income statement.

At the end of each reporting period, the residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods 
for the property, plant and equipment are reviewed for reasonableness. Any change in estimate 
of an item is adjusted prospectively over its remaining useful life, commencing in the current 
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017

3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

b)    Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flows statement, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, 
balances and deposits with banks.

c)    Impairment

(i)    Financial assets

All financial assets (except for financial assets categorised as fair value through profit or loss and 
investment in subsidiaries and associates) are assessed at each reporting date whether there 
is any objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events having an impact on 
the estimated future cash flows of the asset. Losses expected as a result of future events, no 
matter how likely, are not recognised. For an investment in an equity instrument, a significant or 
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is an objective evidence of impairment. If any 
such objective evidence exists, then the impairment loss of the financial asset is estimated.

An impairment loss in respect of loans and receivables is recognised in profit or loss and is 
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of 
estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying 
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account.

An impairment loss in respect of unquoted equity instrument that is carried at cost is recognised 
in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount 
and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of 
return for a similar financial asset.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss for an investment in an equity instrument classified 
as available for sale is not reversed through profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be 
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or 
loss, the impairment loss is reversed, to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not 
exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been recognised at 
the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

d)    Impairment (cont’d)

(ii)   Other assets

The carrying amounts of other assets (except for inventories) are reviewed at the end of each 
reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication 
exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. 

For the purpose of impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of 
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash 
inflows of other assets or cash-generating units.
 
The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use 
and its fair value less costs of disposal. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows 
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or cash-generating 
unit.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating 
unit exceeds its estimated recoverable amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of 
cash-generating units are allocated to reduce the carrying amounts of the assets in the cash-
generating unit (groups of cash-generating units) on a pro rata basis.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at the end of each reporting period 
for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed 
if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the 
last impairment loss was recognised. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the 
asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. Reversals of 
impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the financial year in which the reversals are 
recognised.

e)    Equity instruments

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost in initial recognition and are not remeasured 
subsequently.
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3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

f)    Employee benefits

(i)    Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations in respect of salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave 
and sick leave are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service 
is provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus 
or profit-sharing plans if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay 
this amount as a result of past service provided by the employees and the obligation can be 
estimated reliably.

(ii)   Define contribution plan

The Company’s contributions to statutory pension funds are charged to the profit or loss in the 
financial year to which they relate. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent 
that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

g)    Revenue – services rendered

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss when services have been delivered, 
performed and unconditionally accepted by buyers.

h)    Income tax

(i)    Current tax
 

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from 
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are 
those that are enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current taxes are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that the tax relates to items 
recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

h) Income tax (cont’d)

(ii)   Deferred tax asset

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences at the reporting 
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial 
reporting purposes.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to 
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all 
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed 
at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future 
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates which are expected to apply 
to the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws 
which have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and 
deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the 
same taxation authority.

i)     Fair value measurements

Fair value of an asset or a liability, except for share-based payment and lease transactions, is 
determined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an 
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The measurement assumes 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market 
or in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market.

For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market participant’s ability 
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another 
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
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3.   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

i)     Fair value measurements (cont’d)

When measuring the fair value of an asset of a liability, the Company uses observable market data as 
far as possible. Fair value are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the 
input used in the valuation techniques as follows:

 Level 1:    quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
     Company can access at the measurement date.

 Level 2:    inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
     or liability, either directly or indirectly.

 Level 3:    unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the date of the 
event or change in circumstances that caused the transfers.

j)     Government grants 

Government grants are recognised at fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the Company 
will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be received. Government grants 
used for financial support, assistance or to reimburse costs incurred by the Company are recognised 
in the profit or loss in the periods in which they become receivable. 



INVEST SELANGOR  I  ANNUAL REPORT 2017 91

INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
Company No.: 481741 - M

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2017

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Cost

At
1.1.2017 Addition

At
31.12.2017

RM RM RM

Motor vehicle 887,523 152,484 1,040,007

Furniture and fittings 290,272 20,451 310,723

Office equipment 529,282 2,699 531,981

Office renovation 1,177,053 44,959 1,222,012

Computer 830,463 29,358 859,821

3,714,593 249,951 3,964,544

Accumulated Depreciation

At
1.1.2017

Charge for
the year

At
31.12.2017

RM RM RM

Motor vehicle 883,413 31,867 915,280

Furniture and fittings 166,459 31,072 197,531

Office equipment 406,681 39,460 446,141

Office renovation 908,893 122,201 1,031,094

Computer 603,021 216,612 819,633

2,968,467 441,212 3,409,679

Net Book Value

At
1.1.2017

As at
31.12.2016

RM RM

Motor vehicle 124,727 4,110

Furniture and fittings 113,192 123,813

Office equipment 85,840 122,601

Office renovation 190,918 268,160

Computer 40,188 227,442

554,865 746,126

During the year, the Company acquired property, plant and equipment with a total cost of RM249,951 
(2016: RM102,166) by cash.
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5. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2017 2016

RM RM

Trade receivables 1 80,412 1 87,199

Non-trade

   Other receivables 935,381 760,710

   Deposits 346,399 339,699

   Prepayment 32,842 31,582

1,495,034 1,319,190

6. FIXED DEPOSITS

2017 2016

RM RM

Deposits are placed with:

     Other corporation 3,000,000 4,000,000

The short-term deposits of the Company carry interest at rates ranging from 3.00% to 3.82% per month.

7. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2017 2016

RM RM

Bank balances 829,518 1,815,612

Cash balances - 3 95

829,518 1,816,007
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8. SHARE CAPITAL

The movement in the authorised and paid-up capital of the Company are as follows:-

2017 2016 2017 2016

No. of ordinary shares RM RM

Authorised:

At 1 January 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

Abolishment of the concept of

     authorised share capital on

     31 January 2017 (2,000,000) - (2,000,000) -

- 2,000,000 - 2,000,000

Issued and Fully Paid-up:

At 1 January (Ordinary shares

     of RM1 each) 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

At 31 December - Ordinary 
shares

     with no par value

(2016: Par value RM1 each) 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000 2,000,000

On 31 January 2017, the concepts of authorised share capital and par value of share capital were abolished 
in accordance with the Companies Act 2016. Consequently, the amount standing to the credit of the 
Company’s share premium account become part of the Company’s share capital pursuant to the traditional 
provisions set out in Section 618 (2) of the Companies Act 2016. There is no impact on the number of 
ordinary shares in issue or the relative entitlement of any members as a result of this transaction.

9. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2017 2016

RM RM

Trade payables 161,846 1,116,382

Non-trade

   Other payables 46,713 38,819

   Accruals 55,591 51,023

264,150 1,206,224
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10. REVENUE

2017 2016

RM RM

Revenue consist of:

   Government grant 20,994,839 17,745,427

11. MARKETING AND PROMOTION EXPENSES

2017 2016

RM RM

Marketing and promotion expenses consist of:

   Advertising 663,788 470,749

   Promotion 117,953 164,510

   Publication 249,887 196,138

   Selangor International Expo 13,591,115 12,256,370

14,622,743 13,087,767

12. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES

2017 2016

RM RM

Administrative and operating expenses consist of:

   Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 441,212 332,854

   Director’s expenses 512,531 518,713

   Employment expenses 4,316,699 3,637,939

   Finance charges 2,518 2,672

   General and administration 3,137,225 2,990,276

   Professional fee 82,517 68,242

   Upkeep and maintenance 188,468 124,837

8,681,170 7,675,533
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13. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before tax has been determined after charging/(crediting) :

2017 2016

RM RM

Auditors’ remuneration

   Current year 29,552 28,000

   Overprovision of prior year (1,400) -

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 441,212 332,854

Directors’ costs (Note 14) 462,531 468,713

Directors’ fee 50,000 50,000

Office rental 457,523 446,364

Rental of equipment 6,015 6,675

Staff costs (Note 15) 4,316,699 3,637,939

And crediting:

Interest income (164,249) (177,230)

14. DIRECTOR’S COSTS

2017 2016

RM RM

Executive :

   Salaries and allowances 336,000 322,562

   Bonus 56,000 78,444

   Defined contribution plan 59,702 60,500

   Other directors benefits 829 707

452,531 462,213

Non-Executives :

   Allowance 10,000 6,500

462,531 468,713



96

INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
Company No.: 481741 - M

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2017

15. STAFF COSTS

2017 2016

RM RM

Salary, bonus and allowance 3,301,909 2,766,353

Contribution to defined contribution plan 499,724 416,890

Other employee benefits 515,066 454,696

4,316,699 3,637,939

16. TAXATION

2017 2016

RM RM

Malaysian taxation:

Provision for the year 43,879 42,511

43,879 42,511

Provision for taxation is determined by applying the Malaysian tax rate of 24% (2016: 24%) on chargeable 
income. However, the provision is subject to approval by Inland Revenue Board.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to loss before taxation at the statutory income tax rate 
to income tax expense at the effective income tax rate of the Company is as follows:

2017 2016

RM RM

Loss before taxation (1,012,297) (1,911,911)

Income tax rate at 24% (242,951) (458,859)

Tax effect in respect of:

Non deductable expenses at 24% 474,662 724,264

Deferred tax assets not recognised during the year (187,832) (242,995)

Effect of tax rate - 20,101

43,879 42,511



INVEST SELANGOR  I  ANNUAL REPORT 2017 97

INVEST SELANGOR BERHAD
Company No.: 481741 - M

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2017

17. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments categorised as follows:

i) Loan and receivables (L&R); and
ii) Other financial liabilities (AC) measured at amortised cost.

2017

Carrying
amount L&R AC

RM RM RM

Financial assets

Trade receivables 180,412 180,412 -

Other receivables 1,281,780 1,281,780 -

Fixed deposits 3,000,000 3,000,000 -

Cash and cash equivalents 829,518 829,518 -

5,291,710 5,291,710 -

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 161,846 - 161,846

Other payables 102,304 - 102,304

264,150 - 264,150

2016

Carrying
amount L&R AC

RM RM RM

Financial assets

Trade receivables 187,199 187,199 -

Other receivables 1,100,409 1,100,409 -

Fixed deposits 4,000,000 4,000,000 -

Cash and cash equivalents 1,816,007 1,816,007 -

7,103,615 7,103,615 -

Financial liabilities

Trade payables 1,116,382 - 1,116,382

Other payables 89,842 - 89,842

1,206,224 - 1,206,224
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18. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company’s objectives when managing capital is to maintain a strong capital base and safeguard 
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. There were no changes in the Company’s 
approach to capital management during the year.  

19.   RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the significant related party transactions 
are disclosed below:

2017 2016

RM RM

Grant received:

   Menteri Besar Incorporated 6,000,000 5,000,000
 

20.   SIGNIFICANT EVENT DURING THE YEAR

The Companies Act 2016 (“New Act”) was enacted to replace the Companies Act, 1965 in Malaysia 
with the objectives of creating a legal and regulatory structure that will facilitate business and promote 
accountability as well as protection of corporate directors and shareholders, taking into consideration the 
interest of other stakeholders. The New Act was passed on 5 April 2016 by the Dewan Rakyat (House of 
Representative) and gazetted on 15 September 2016. On 26 January 2017, the Minister of Domestic Trade, 
Co-operatives and Consumerism announced that the date on which the New Act comes into operation, 
except Section 241 and Division 8 of Part III of the New Act, would be 31 January 2017.
 
Amongst the key change introduced in the Act which will affect the financial statements of the Company 
upon the commencement of the New Act on 31 January 2017 are:
 

(a) Removal of the authorized share capital; and
(b) Shares of the Company will cease to have par or nominal value.
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21. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

As previously 
reported Reclassification As restated

RM RM RM

Trade and other payables:

   Output tax (54,109) 54,109 -

Trade and other receivables:

   Output tax - (54,109) (54,109)

(54,109) - (54,109)










